

APPENDIX A - SCHEDULE OF FEES, RATES AND CHARGES

Subject Amount

ADULT PERFORMANCE ESTABLISHMENT, ESCORT SERVICES, AND ESCORT LICENSES:

- (1) Application fee (escort service or adult performance establishment) (section 14.5-63) (nonrefundable fee) ~~255.25~~ 268.00
- (2) Annual license fee (section 14.5-67 a. Adult performance establishment license
.....~~638.25~~ 670.25
 - b. Escort service license~~255.25~~ 268.00
- (3) Name change, adult performance establishment or escort service (section 14.5-69~~4.25~~ 4.50
- (4) Application fee, escort license (per escort) (section 14.5-93~~63.75~~ 67.00
- (5) Escort license, annual license fee (per escort) (section 14.5-96~~127.50~~ 134.00

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES:

Bottle club license (§ 4-36~~97.75~~ 102.75

Alcohol event permit (§ 4-4~~382.75~~ 402.00

BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS:

- (1) *Building permit fees* (§ 6-3(108.2 of the Florida Building Code, 2004 ed.)): See subsection (6) for all new construction, addition and renovation permit fees for one- and two-family residential (i.e. dwelling). For multifamily residential projects (those designated as type R2 under section 310.1 of the Florida Building Code, 2004 ed.), there shall be one building permit issued for each multifamily building.
 - a. The permit fee for all new construction and additions shall be calculated based on the cost per square foot table and estimated valuation taken from the table below or the contract price, whichever is greater. The permit fee for all renovations shall be calculated based on the contract price. If the owner builder is obtaining the permit and there is no contract, the owner must submit a sworn affidavit of the cost of the project with backup provided for the materials cost. The cost shown on the affidavit will be used in lieu of the contract price to calculate the permit fee.
 1. Where the valuation does not exceed \$1,000.00100.00
 2. Where the valuation is over \$1,000.00:
 - (i) First \$1,000.00100.00
 - (ii) Each additional \$1,000.00 or fractional part up to \$250,000.006.75
 3. Where the valuation is over \$250,000.00:
 - (i) First \$250,000.001,780.75
 - (ii) Each additional \$1,000.00 or fractional part up to \$1,000,000.003.50
 4. Where the valuation is over \$1,000,000.00:
 - (i) First \$1,000,000.004,405.75
 - (ii) Each additional \$1,000.00 or fractional part thereafter3.50
 5. Site work only: Valuation to calculate permit fee shall be based on the cost of excavation, paving and landscaping.

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

- b. Moving buildings or structures, each story82.75
- c. Paving of all driveways and parking lots other than public, single-family and duplex use:
 - 1. First 1,000 square feet27.75
 - 2. Each additional 1,000 square feet or fractional part thereafter11.25
- d. Fences and/or walls wood frame construction (where required):
 - 1. First 300 lineal feet or fractional part55.25
 - 2. Each 100 lineal feet thereafter16.75

(Masonry walls shall be calculated the same as a new building permit)
- e. Demolition of buildings, per floor55.25
- f. Mobile home sites and/or tie-down fees, for each location55.25
- g. Notice of commencement form, except where exempted by F.S. Ch. 7135.75
- h. Reinspection fees shall be charged under the following conditions:
 - 1. The project is not ready for the inspection requested.
 - 2. Upon any reinspection, all the prior corrections have not been made.

The reinspection fee shall be \$110.00 each. This fee shall be paid prior to scheduling any additional inspections for that project.
- i. There shall be a double fee for all work for which a permit is required and work has commenced before a permit is applied for.
- j. For multifamily residential projects, each inspection after the first of that type per building, when requested by the contractor 60.00
- k. Building plan review fee: 20% of the permit cost.
- l. Fire plan review fee (R3 Exempt): 20% of the permit cost.

Any inspection for which no fee is specified for actual time spent inspecting60.00—Re-roofing permits shall be calculated at a base fee of \$60.00 plus \$3.00 /square, or contract price using the building valuation, whichever is greater.

Valuation estimates shall be based on the cost per square foot of total floor area as published in the International Code Council Building Safety Journal in February and August each year.

Occupancy	Types of Construction ³								
	I-A	I-B	IV	II		III		V	
				II-A 1-HR	II-B UNP	III-A 1-HR	III-B UNP	V-A 1-HR	V-B UNP
<i>Assembly:</i>									

Auditorium	139.30	133.62	117.26	128.35	122.44	109.81	110.09	98.65	94.55
Church	163.60	157.92	141.56	153.66	146.75	135.13	134.40	123.97	118.86
Gymnasium	136.70	132.48	119.68	128.10	124.03	114.08	114.77	104.71	102.11
Restaurant	136.70	132.48	119.68	128.10	124.03	114.08	114.77	104.71	102.11
Theater with stage	176.90	171.15	154.79	166.88	159.97	148.38	147.66	137.22	132.12
<i>Business:</i>									
Office	140.00	134.95	117.26	130.65	124.54	111.53	110.82	99.60	95.75
Research/Eng	140.00	134.95	119.78	130.65	124.54	111.53	110.82	99.60	95.75
Service Station	140.00	134.95	119.78	130.65	124.54	111.53	110.82	99.60	95.75
<i>Educational:</i>									
School	149.10	144.06	129.32	139.93	133.69	123.37	120.45	110.19	106.00
<i>Factory-Industrial:</i>									
Light-Mfg.	85.02	81.11	70.93	76.36	73.93	63.99	64.99	54.77	51.74
<i>Hazardous (Sprinkler System Included)³:</i>									
Hazardous	140.00	134.95	119.78	130.65	124.54	111.53	110.82	99.60	95.75
<i>Institutional:</i>									
Convalescent Hospital	138.30	133.59	123.94	130.04	124.80	114.52	123.94	105.39	101.21
Hospital	138.30	133.59	123.94	130.04	124.80	114.56	114.52	105.39	101.21
<i>Mercantile:</i>									
Department Stores	102.60	98.32	85.52	93.94	89.97	80.45	81.15	71.08	68.48

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Mall Stores	102.60	98.32	85.52	93.94	89.87	80.45	81.15	71.08	68.48
Mall-Concourse	102.60	98.32	85.52	93.94	89.87	80.45	81.15	71.08	68.48
Retail-Stores	102.60	98.32	85.52	93.94	89.87	80.45	81.15	71.08	68.48
<i>Residential:</i>									
Apartments	116.30	111.63	102.18	108.08	102.84	92.80	92.76	83.63	79.45
Dormitories	116.30	111.63	102.18	108.08	102.84	92.80	92.76	83.63	79.45
Assisted Living Bldgs.	138.30	133.59	123.94	130.04	124.80	114.56	114.52	105.39	101.21
Hotel	138.70	133.98	124.42	130.43	125.19	115.04	115.00	105.87	101.68
Motel	138.70	133.98	124.42	130.43	125.19	115.04	115.00	105.87	101.68
Single Family Residence	111.50	108.46	101.12	105.79	102.87	98.15	97.91	93.50	88.03
<i>Storage:</i>									
Parking Garage	77.75	73.84	63.66	70.09	66.68	57.88	57.88	48.46	44.63
Private Garage	77.75	73.74	63.66	70.09	66.68	57.88	63.66	48.46	44.63
Repair Garage	78.75	74.84	64.66	70.09	67.68	57.88	58.88	48.46	45.63
Warehouse	78.75	73.84	63.66	70.09	66.68	57.88	57.88	48.46	44.63

For sprinkled buildings other than hazardous occupancies add \$175 183.75/sq. ft.

- (2) *Electrical permit fees* (§ 6-3(108.2 of the Florida Building Code, 2004 ed.)): See subsection (6) for all new construction, addition and renovation permit fees for one- and two-family residential (i.e. dwelling).

- a. Electrical permit, each 60.00
- b. Inspection fee per inspection 60.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

- c. Reinspection fees shall be charged under the following conditions:
 - 1. The project is not ready for the inspection requested.
 - 2. Upon any reinspection, all the prior corrections have not been made.

The reinspection fee shall be \$110.00 each. This fee shall be paid prior to scheduling any additional inspections for that project.
- d. A fee of double the above amounts shall be charged for any work commenced before a permit is applied for. If work is performed on an emergency basis, the master electrician shall obtain the necessary permit within forty-eight (48) hours or a double fee will be charged.
- e. Request for inspection to be done after working hours180.00
- (3) *Plumbing permit fees* (§ 6-2(108.2 of the Florida Building Code, 2004 ed.)): See subsection (6) for all new construction, addition and renovation permit fees for one- and two-family residential (i.e. dwelling).
 - a. Permit fee60.00
 - b. Inspection fee per inspection60.00
 - c. Reinspection fees shall be charged under the following conditions:
 - 1. The project is not ready for the inspection requested.
 - 2. Upon any reinspection, all the prior corrections have not been made.

The reinspection fee shall be \$110.00 each. This fee shall be paid prior to scheduling any additional inspections for that project.
 - d. Double the amount of the permit shall be charged for any work commenced before the permit has been applied for. If work is performed on an emergency basis, the plumbing contractor shall obtain the necessary permit within forty-eight (48) hours of the next working day or a double fee shall be charged.
 - e. Request for inspection to be done after normal working hours180.00
- (4) *Gas permit and inspection fees* (§ 6-2(108.2 of the Florida Building Code, 2004 ed.)): See subsection (6) for all new construction, ² addition and renovation permit fees for one- and two-family residential (i.e. dwelling).
 - a. Permit fee60.00
 - b. Inspection fee per inspection60.00
 - c. Reinspection fees shall be charged under the following conditions:
 - 1. The project is not ready for the inspection requested.
 - 2. Upon any reinspection, all the prior corrections have not been made.

The reinspection fee shall be \$110.00 each. This fee shall be paid prior to scheduling any additional inspections for that project.
 - d. Double the amount of the permit shall be charged for work commenced before a permit is applied for. If work is performed on an emergency basis, the master craftsman shall obtain the necessary permit within forty-eight (48) hours of the next working day, or a double fee shall be charged.
 - e. Request for inspection to be done after normal working hours180.00

- (5) *Mechanical permit fees* (§ 6-2(108.2 of the Florida Building Code, 2004 ed.)): See subsection (6) for all new construction, addition and renovation permit fees for one- and two-family residential (i.e. dwelling).
- a. Permit fee60.00
 - b. Inspection fee per inspection60.00
 - c. Reinspection fees shall be charged under the following conditions:
 1. The project is not ready for the inspection requested.
 2. Upon any reinspection, all the prior corrections have not been made.

Reinspection fee shall be \$110.00 each. This fee shall be paid prior to scheduling any additional inspections for that project.
 - d. A double fee of the amount of the permit shall be charged for work commenced before a permit is applied for. If work is performed on an emergency basis, the master craftsman shall obtain the necessary permit within forty-eight (48) hours of the next working day, or a double fee shall be charged.
 - e. Request for inspection after normal working hours180.00
- (6) *Permit fee for new construction, additions and renovations of one- and two-family residential* (i.e. dwellings, section R101.2.1 of the Florida Residential Code):
- a. The permit fee for all new construction and additions shall be calculated based on the cost per square foot and the valuation table or the contract price, whichever is greater. The permit fee for all renovations shall be calculated based on the contract price. If the owner builder is obtaining the permit and there is no contract, the owner builder must submit a sworn affidavit of the cost of the project with backup provided for the materials cost. The cost shown on the affidavit will be used in lieu of the contract price to calculate the permit fee.
 1. Where the valuation does not exceed \$1,000.00100.00
 2. Where the valuation is over \$1,000.00:
 - (i) First \$1,000.00100.00
 - (ii) Each additional \$1,000.00 or fractional part up to \$250,000.006.75
 3. Where the valuation is over \$250,000.00:
 - (i) First \$250,000.001,780.75
 - (ii) Each additional \$1,000.00 or fractional part up to \$1,000,000.003.50
 4. Where the valuation is over \$1,000,000.00:
 - (i) First \$1,000,000.004,405.75
 - (ii) Each additional \$1,000.00 or fractional part thereafter3.50
 5. Site work only: Valuation to calculate permit fee shall be based on the cost of excavation, paving and landscaping.
 - b. There shall be a double fee for all work for which a permit is required and work has commenced before a permit is applied for.
 - c. At least one working day prior to the first inspection of the work, the person to whom the permit was issued shall notify the building official or his/her designee and provide a list of all the licensed craftsmen who are or will be performing work under the permit. If any substitutions or additions to such list occur during the course of the work, the building official shall be notified immediately. No inspection of any work under the permit shall be

conducted unless and until such list is up-to-date and complete at least one (1) day prior to any requested inspection.

- d. If, as described above, the person to whom the permit is issued is not performing all the work to be performed under the permit, such person shall procure affidavits from the licensed craftsman performing such other work stating that such work was performed by them in accordance with the code and shall present such affidavits to the inspector prior to any inspection of such other work.
- e. Reinspection fees shall be charged under the following conditions:
 - 1. The project is not ready for the inspection requested.
 - 2. Upon any reinspection, all the prior corrections have not been made.

Reinspection fees shall be \$110.00 each. This fee shall be paid prior to scheduling any additional inspections for that project.

- f. For each request for inspection or reinspection to be done after-hours there shall be an additional charge of \$180.00.

(7) *[Journeyman test fees]*

- a. Application processing fee for journeyman test (§ 6-187):33.25
- b. Certificate for journeyman—Application fee (§ 6-18726.25
- c. Reciprocation of certification for journeyman—Application fee (§ 6-187105.00

(8) *Contractor and craftsman certificates, annual renewal (§ 6-193):*

Beginning September 30, 2000, Contractor and Craftsman Certificates shall be renewed every two years according to the following schedule:

Year 2000 and subsequent even-numbered years: Last Name beginning with A through M.

Year 2001 and subsequent odd-numbered years: Last Name beginning with N through Z.

- a. Contractor and master certificates55.25
- b. Journeyman craftsman certificates55.25
- c. Late renewal, all classes of certificates110.25

(9) *Administrative fees:*

- a. Duplicate plans provided by the customer27.75
- b. Duplicate permit card11.25
- c. Revisions to plans (each item changed)11.25
- d. Letters of reciprocation27.75
- e. Plans search (locating)27.75
- f. Local fax application surcharge1.25
- g. Long distance fax application surcharge2.25
- h. Duplicate plans lost by the customer prior to the certificate of occupancy, and made available by the city, plus reproduction fees55.25

(10) *Special services:*

- a. Pre-plan review, one-half building permit fee. Valuation is based on cost per square foot and type of construction. This fee will be applied to the building permit application.

- b. After-hours inspection180.00
- c. Fast track surcharge; equal to permit fee, not to exceed500.00

Special inspections:

1. *Multi-family and mixed use buildings:*

When a building or project meets any of the following parameters, special inspections are required based on the fee in 3. below.

- (i) Contract price of \$10,000,000 or greater; or
- (ii) 50,000 or greater total gross square feet; or
- (iii) Meets the definition of a Threshold Building as defined in F.S. § 553.71(7).

2. *Single family dwelling developments:*

Upon the written request of a developer or contractor of a single-family dwelling development in excess of 75 dwelling units and upon written approval by the building official, special inspections shall be provided to the developer or contractor of said single-family dwelling development.

Requests for special inspections must be completed by the developer/contractor in writing and will be approved by the building official in writing prior to developer or contractor filing the first application for permitting. The fees shall be due and payable on the date the first application for permitting is filed with the city. Subsequent requests to continue the special inspection service for additional 30-day periods must be received by the city in written form two weeks prior to the expiration of the current 30-day period and shall be submitted along with the special service monthly fee. All fees are nonrefundable.

The city reserves the right to suspend such special inspections in the event of impossibility or in times of natural disaster. Any fees previously paid to the city will be held in abeyance pending resumption of special inspections.

- 3. Fee per hour52.50
- 4. Special inspection service charge for on-site, full-time inspector9,100.00 per 30-day period

(11) *Flat rate permit fees:*

- a. Pre-manufactured storage buildings greater than 100 square feet60.00
- b. Tent permit60.00
- c. Christmas tree sales lot, includes structure, and temporary pole, lights and signs60.00
- d. Change of use—no construction60.00
- e. Electrical service changes, upgrades only; all service sizes60.00

(12) *Board and seal permit fee (§ 6-20(e))82.75*

CABLE FRANCHISE:

Application fees (all fees are nonrefundable):

- (1) New franchise application by first time franchisee~~19,144.25~~ 20,101.50
- (2) Transfer of franchise (other than corporate reorganization)~~6,309.25~~ 6,624.75

CEMETERY:

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Cemetery Rates	Rate	Rate with Surcharge****
<i>Grave Space Sales Include Perpetual Care Fee</i>		
Adult	\$1,334.25 1401.00	\$1,467.75 1541.00
Infant	235.25 -247.00	258.75 - 272.00
Cremains	369.25 -387.75	406.25 - 427.00
<i>Interments Weekday*</i>		
Adults	402.00 -422.00	442.25 -464.00
Infants	134.00 -140.75	147.50 -155.00
Cremains	134.00 -140.75	147.50 -155.00
*Monday - Thursday 7:00 am - 4:30 pm		
<i>Interments Overtime**</i>		
Adults	536.00 -562.75	589.50 -619.00
Infant	201.25 -211.25	221.50 -233.00
Cremains	201.25 -211.25	221.50 -233.00
**Overtime rates charged on Fridays, Saturdays (no services on Sundays) and after 4:30 pm weekdays		
<i>Dis-Interments Weekday*</i>		
Adults	603.00 -633.25	663.25 -696.00
Infant	134.00 -140.75	147.50 -155.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Cremains	134.00 140.75	147.50 155.00
*Monday - Thursday 7:00 am - 4:30 pm		
Dis-Interments Overtime**		
Adults	753.00 790.75	828.25 870.00
Infant	201.25 211.25	221.50 233.00
Cremains	201.25 211.25	221.50 233.00
**Overtime rates charged on Fridays, Saturdays (no services on Sundays) and after 4:30 pm weekdays		
<i>Re-Interments Weekday*</i>		
Adults	402.00 422.00	442.25 464.00
Infants	134.00 140.75	147.50 155.00
Cremains	134.00 140.75	147.50 155.00
*Monday - Thursday 7:00 am - 4:30 pm		
<i>Re-Interments Overtime**</i>		
Adults	536.00 562.75	589.50 619.00
Infants	134.00 140.75	147.50 155.00
Cremains	134.00 140.75	147.50 155.00
**Overtime rates charged on Fridays, Saturdays (no services on Sundays) and after 4:30 pm weekdays		
<i>Annual Care (Billed Annually)</i>		
Full Lot 32 × 32	402.00 422.00	442.25 464.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Partial Lot 32 × 20	256.50 -269.25	282.25 -296.00
Half Lot	201.25 -211.25	221.50 -233.00
Quarter Lot	100.50 -105.50	110.50 -116.00
Single Grave	40.50 -42.50	44.50 -47.00
Infant Grave	27.00 -28.25	29.75 -31.00
<i>Perpetual Care (One Time Charge)***</i> <i>Now included with space purchase</i>		
<i>***These prices are for converting from annual care</i>		
Full Lot	804.00 -844.25	884.50 -929.00
Partial Lot	502.75 -528.00	553.00 -581.00
Half Lot	402.00 -422.00	442.25 -464.00
Quarter Lot	335.25 -352.00	368.75 -387.00
Single Grave	335.25 -352.00	368.75 -387.00
Infant Grave	161.25 -169.25	177.50 -186.00
<i>Transfers of Interment Rights</i>		
Exchange of interment rights	20.00 -21.00	22.00 -23.00
Plus quit claim deed	6.75 -7.00	7.45 -8.00
<i>Foundations</i>		
8" × 16"	34.75 -36.50	38.25 -40.00
24" × 12"	34.75 -36.50	38.25 -40.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

34" × 12"	34.75 36.50	38.25 40.00
36" × 12"	40.50 42.50	44.50 47.00
36" × 16"	40.50 42.50	44.50 47.00
42" × 12"	40.50 42.50	44.50 47.00
42" × 16"	40.50 42.50	44.50 47.00
48" × 12"	51.00 53.50	56.00 59.00
48" × 16"	51.00 53.50	56.00 59.00
60" × 12"	53.25 56.00	58.50 61.00
60" × 16"	53.25 56.00	58.50 61.00
66" × 12"	53.25 56.00	58.50 61.00
66" × 16"	53.25 56.00	58.50 61.00
72" × 12"	64.75 68.00	71.25 75.00
72" × 16"	64.75 68.00	71.25 75.00
78" × 12"	67.25 70.50	74.00 77.00
78" × 16"	67.25 70.50	74.00 77.00
78" × 32"	80.00 84.00	88.00 93.00
78" × 36"	84.50 88.75	93.00 98.00
84" × 36"	84.50 88.75	93.00 98.00
Tacachale Interments	183.00	183.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Alachua County Indigent Interments	183.00	183.00
****All surcharges are mandatory and may not be waived		

CONTROLLED VEHICULAR PARKING AREA DECALS/PERMITS (Chapter 26, Article III, Division 4):

- (1) *Residential decal/permit:*
 - a. Homestead properties (Annual)~~20.00~~ 21.00
 - b. Homestead properties (Three year)~~60.00~~ 63.00
 - c. Non-homestead properties (Zones 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, and 12)~~50.00~~ 52.50
 - d. Non-homestead properties (Zones 1, 2, 5, and 10)~~100.00~~ 105.00
 - e. Replacement~~20.00~~ 21.00
- (2) *Temporary decal/permit*no charge
- (3) *Commercial permit*~~20.50~~ 21.50
- (4) *Visitor permit*no charge
- (5) *Fraternity/sorority meal decal*
 - a. Zones 3, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, and 12~~50.00~~ 52.50
 - b. Zones 1, 2, 5, and 10~~100.00~~ 105.00
- (6) *Service permit*~~20.50~~ 21.50
- (7) *Fee to appeal revocation*~~134.00~~ 140.75
- (8) *Fee for reinstatement after revocation*~~134.00~~ 140.75

FIRE/RESCUE:

- (1) *Fire alarm operators:*

Application for fire alarm or annual renewal application~~17.25~~ 18.00

Application for fire alarm or annual renewal for integrated fire and burglar alarm system0.00

(Note: proportionately adjusted for initial periods exceeding one year (section 10-32))
- (2) *False alarms:*

First with valid permit0.00

First without valid permit, or second with valid permit, each~~129.75~~ 150.00

Third and fourth, each~~129.75~~ 200.00

Fifth, sixth and seventh, each~~297.75~~ 400.00

Eighth and above, each~~749.75~~ 800.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

(Note: reduced to \$11.50 if false fire alarm caused by system malfunction and proof of timely service/repair is submitted to the fire department (section 10-33(d))

Non-permitted system, additional fee~~243.00~~ 255.25

(Note: reduced to ~~\$61.00~~ 64.00 if application filed within 10 days (section 10-33)

Fire alarm permit reinstatement fee after revocation (section 10-34~~61.00~~ 64.00

Failure to respond when requested by the fire department (section 10-36~~61.00~~ 64.00

Resetting of an activated fire alarm prior to arrival of fire department and approval for resetting
.....~~152.00~~ 159.50

Failure to deactivate fire alarm within 15 minutes (section 10-37~~152.00~~ 159.50

(3) *Prohibited devices:*

Automatic dialing device (section 10-41 (a))~~152.00~~ 159.50

Auxiliary power supply less than four-hour minimum (section 10-42~~152.00~~ 159.50

(4) *Fire alarm monitoring companies:*

Annual registration fee (section 10-38~~121.50~~ 127.50

Failure to register or to maintain records for two years (section 10-38(d))~~152.00~~ 159.50

Failure to monitor in accordance with the Florida Fire Prevention Code (section 10-38)
.....~~152.00~~ 159.50

Failure to verify alarm (section 10-39~~152.00~~ 159.50

(5) *Fire alarm system contractors:*

Annual registration fee (section 10-40(a))~~121.50~~ 127.50

Failure to register annually (section 10-40(a)); failure to meet UL or NFPA 72 standards (section 10-40(d)); activation of unpermitted fire alarm (section 10-40(e))~~152.00~~ 159.50

Causing false fire alarm during servicing or inspection—each violation (section 10-40(f))
.....~~152.00~~ 159.50

Installation, maintenance, repair, alteration or servicing by unregistered contractor, each violation (section 10-40(b))~~152.00~~ 159.50

Failure to furnish agents with identification cards, each violation (section 10-40(c))~~61.00~~ 64.00

Failure to provide fire alarm operators with permit applications, each violation (section 10-40(g))
.....~~61.00~~ 64.00

(6) *Fire inspection* (Chapter 10)

square footage of inspected structure:

All After Hour Inspections will include an additional fee of \$180.00

Initial Inspection Fee

I. Findings- no violations and in compliance- 0.00

II. Findings- not in compliance will be charged the standard fee based on the fee schedule for the size of the building

Re-Inspection

I. Findings- all violation correct, no charge

II. Findings- not in compliance will be charged an inspection fee equal to twice the standard fee for the size of the building

0—3,000 ~~66.25~~ 69.50

Over 3,000—5,000~~77.25~~ 80.50

Over 5,000—10,000~~88.25~~ 91.50

Over 10,000-25,000 102.50

~~Over 10,000—50,00099.25~~ 104.25

Over 25,000-50,000 113.50

Over 50,000-75,000 124.50

~~Over 50,000—100,000110.25~~ 115.75

Over 75,000-100,000 135.50

Over 100,000-125,000 146.50

~~Over 100,000—150,000121.25~~ 127.25

Over 125,000-150,000 157.50

Over 150,000-175,000 168.50

~~Over 150,000—200,000132.25~~ 138.75

Over 175,000-200,000 179.50

Over 200,000~~165.50~~ ~~173.75~~ 11.00 / 25K

(7) Burning leaves, brush, clean wood or other vegetative debris § 10-70

Residential, per event~~55.25~~ 58.00

Commercial, per event~~110.25~~ 115.75

(8) Annual burning permit for each burn barrel and/or outdoor wood-fired boiler § 10-70~~55.25~~ 58.00

(9) Pyrotechnic display § 10-70~~110.25~~ 115.75

(10) Crowd Manager Training Fee- \$30.00 per person

(11) Special Events Fire Inspection Fee- 150.00 per event

Tempoary Assembly Occupancy Inspection Fee based on occupant load:50-500- 75.00501-1000- 150.001001+ - 250.00(12) Fire Inspection for Tents- 75.00

HEALTH AND SANITATION (Chapter 11.5, Article III)

Basic air monitoring fee for hazardous materials response when detected levels are identified while monitoring for: pH levels, radiation, fluorine, oxidizers, flammability, oxygen, carbon monoxide, hydrogen sulfide, volatile organic compounds and inorganic substances; excluding residential responses to carbon monoxide alarms~~405.00~~110.25

HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT:

An application for a permit shall be submitted for each home occupation (section 30-58).

- 1) Initial filing fee, per application submitted, per application~~73.00~~76.75
- 2) Permit processing fee, annually per permit~~12.00~~12.50
- 3) Reinspection fee, per permit (required every three years)~~64.00~~64.00

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE:

(1) *Historic Preservation/Conservation:*

- a. Petitions for rezoning and zoning text amendments~~638.25~~ 670.25
- b. Certificate of appropriateness (if historic preservation board review is required):
 - i. Single family structure or its accessory structure~~440.25~~ 115.75
 - ii. All other structures~~554.25~~ 578.75
- c. Certificate of appropriateness penalty, if work begun prior to application being filed, in addition to fee in b. above~~408.75~~ 429.25

(2) *Planning:**Land use and zoning changes:*

- a. Petitions for an amendment to the land use element of the comprehensive plan:
 1. Small scale map amendment~~1,653.75~~1,736.50
 2. Large scale map amendment~~3,307.50~~3,473.00
- b. Comprehensive plan or Land Development Code text change~~638.25~~670.25
- c. Zoning map change~~3,076.00~~ 3,229.75
- d. Petitions for development plan review and an amendment to a development plan, which may be authorized by the appropriate reviewing board, must be accompanied by fees according to this schedule:
 1. Concept review (of any plan)~~1,276.50~~1,340.25
 Fee shall be credited toward the plan review fee if a subsequent petition for development plan review is filed within six months of its concept review.
 2. Rapid plan review0.00

3. Minor plan review ~~.....1,653.75~~ 1,736.50
4. Intermediate plan review ~~.....3,858.75~~ 4,051.75
5. Major plan review ~~.....4,403.50~~ 4,623.75
6. For any plan review that requires submittal of a traffic study, the following additional fees shall apply:
 - (a) "Minor" traffic study (as defined in the City of Gainesville Traffic Study Guidelines) review fee ~~.....1,402.50~~ 1,157.75
 - (b) "Major" traffic study (as defined in the City of Gainesville Traffic Study Guidelines) review fee ~~.....2,205.00~~ 2,315.25

These traffic study review fees include up to three reviews per development plan. Additional reviews require payment of an additional fee at the full amount stated above for which petitioner will receive an additional three reviews, if necessary.

A resubmittal/revision fee of 25 percent of the original fee amount will be applied to all fee areas.

If a continuance is requested, the fee for the continuance will be the actual cost of advertising.

All development plan review which are for a non-one or two-family residential project certified under the Gainesville Green Building Program (Article I.5) shall be reduced by 50 percent.

- e. Petitions for rezoning to the planned development category (in addition to any other applicable development plan fees ~~.....4,961.25~~ 5,209.25
- f. Concept review of planned development rezoning fee ~~.....1,276.50~~ 1,340.25
Shall be credited toward the rezoning fee if a subsequent petition is filed within six months for rezoning to planned development.
- g. Petitions for amendments to a planned development ordinance ~~.....1,404.00~~ 1,474.25

In the event the primary purpose of the amendment is to protect trees and/or other natural features, then the fee may be refunded to the petitioner in the sole discretion of the city manager.

Other petitions:

- h. Developments of Regional Impact (DRI) An initial fee will be due with the submission of the application ~~.....12,762.75~~ 13,401.00
A rate of ~~\$ 69.25~~ 72.75 per hour will be applied against the initial fee for time devoted to the DRI. If the initial fee is expended, a second payment will be assessed ~~.....12,762.75~~ 13,401.00
A rate of \$ ~~66.00~~ 69.25 per hour will be applied against the second payment for time devoted to the DRI. Any excess remaining from the initial fee or second payment will be refunded to the applicant.
- i. Petitions seeking special exceptions or variances from the board of adjustment ~~.....287.50~~ 302.00
- j. Petitions seeking street or alley closings or abandonment of any public way ~~.....836.00~~ 877.75

- k. Petitions to appeal administrative decisions to the board of adjustment (§ 30-354~~382.75~~
402.00

The fee shall be automatically returned to the petitioner in the event the board of adjustment finds that the order, requirement, decision, or determination of the administrative official was made in error.

- l. Zoning verification/code compliance letter~~51.25~~53.75
- m. Petitions for special use permits, per petition (in addition to any other applicable development plan review fees) (§§ 30-200 and 30-234~~1,034.25~~1,086.00
- n. Petitions for commercial tree removal permits (§ 30-254):
1. Where the parcel is five acres or less~~64.00~~67.25
 2. Where the parcel is more than five acres~~95.75~~100.50
- o. Petition to appeal a decision of the city planning board or development review board to a hearing officer (§§ 30-234 and 30-352.1~~638.25~~670.25
- The petitioner is entitled to a refund of the fee in the event the petitioner is the prevailing party. The hearing officer may decide who is the prevailing party in case of doubt or uncertainty.
- p. Alcoholic beverage license review~~45.00~~47.25
- q. Verification of signatures on a petition, as defined in Section 30-56.1, on a petition requesting imposition of a Residential Parking Overlay District, per each signature1.00

(3) *Subdivisions:*

- a. Design plat application~~510.50~~536.00
Plus, for each lot on plat~~11.50~~12.00
- b. Final plat application~~351.25~~368.75
Plus, for each lot on plat~~9.25~~9.75
- c. Roadway inspection fee (§ 30-185(2)e.)~~638.25~~670.25
Plus, per linear roadway center line foot~~4.50~~4.75
- d. Minor subdivisions~~510.50~~536.00
- e. Lot splits~~255.25~~268.00
- f. Single lot replat~~638.25~~670.25

(4) *Zoning:*

- a. Landlord permit:
1. Initial applications:
 - a. Application received on time and payment received on or before 10 business days of city finding all other permit requirements met204.75
 - b. Application received 1 business day to 15 calendar days late or payment received after 10 business days but on or before 15 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met253.50
 - c. Application received 16 to 30 calendar days late or payment received after 15 business days but on or before 30 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met302.25

- d. Application received 31 to 60 calendar days late or payment received after 30 calendar days but on or before 60 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met399.25
- e. Application received 61 to 90 calendar days late or payment received after 60 calendar days but on or before 90 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met496.75
- f. Applications received between February 1st and July 31st of the permit year, for properties for which the initial permit requirement manifest during that time period.
 - 1. Application received on time and payment received on or before 10 business days of city finding all other permit requirements met102.50
 - 2. Application received 1 business day to 15 calendar days late or payment received after 10 business days but on or before 15 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met151.00
 - 3. Application received 16 to 30 calendar days late or payment received after 15 business days but on or before 30 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met199.75
 - 4. Application received 31 to 60 calendar days late or payment received after 30 calendar days but on or before 60 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met297.00
 - 5. Application received 61 to 90 calendar days late or payment received after 60 calendar days but on or before 90 calendar days of city finding all other permit requirements met394.25
- 2. Renewals:
 - a. Payment received on or before August 31204.75
 - b. Payment received after August 31 but on or before September 15253.50
 - c. Payment received after September 15 but on or before October 1302.25
 - d. Payment received after October 1 but on or before November 1399.25 4
 - e. Payment received after November 1496.75
 - b. Permit for family day care home, filing fee to be submitted with application ~~.....42.50~~ 44.75
 - c. Permit for personal care group home, filing fee ~~.....42.50~~ 44.75
 - d. Permit for foster family home for children and adults, filing fee ~~.....42.50~~ 44.75
 - e. Permit for across-street banner ~~.....30.50~~ 32.00
 - f. Permit for vertical pole banner ~~.....32.25~~ 33.75
 - g. Reserved.
 - h. Permit for Special Events (§ 30-67(g), §30-107, Ch. 19 ~~.....55.25~~ 58.00
 - i. Sidewalk café in city right-of –way, annual license agreement administrative fee (§ 30-121)60.00
 - j. Sidewalk café in state right-of-way, annual license agreement administrative fee (§30-121)....2.00 per square foot of right-of-way
 - k. Permit for patrons' dogs within outdoor portions of eating places (§ 30-123 ~~.....250.00~~ 262.50
 - l. Permit for parking for special event (§ 30-56(c)(5) ~~.....52.50~~ 55.25

- m. Permit for seasonal use of portable storage unit by commercial parcel delivery services (§30-122)... 250.00

- (5) *All land development fees herein required which are applicable to land development occurring in the area designated as the enterprise zone by Resolution R050296, shall be reduced by 50 percent.*
- (6) *Review of Surface Waters and Wetlands (§ 30-300) and Review of Regulated Natural and Archaeological Resources (§ 30-310). Note: only one fee will be charged for reviewing both surface waters and wetlands and regulated natural and archaeological resources:*
- Basic reviewno fee
 - Level 1 review~~500.00~~ 525.00
 - Level 2 review~~2,100.00~~ 2,205.00
 - Optional binding resource determination of regulated natural and archaeological resources~~500.00~~ 525.00
 - Optional binding resource determination update for regulated sinkholes and listed species~~125.00~~ 131.25
 - Optional binding resource determination update for changes that could alter the presence and location of resources~~250.00~~ 262.50
- (7) *Heritage overlay districts (§ 30-80.1 and § 30-80.2):*
- Petition for rezoning~~3,076.00~~ 3,229.75
 - Petition for text change~~638.25~~ 670.25
 - Petition for review of regulated work items~~110.25~~ 115.75
 - Penalty if regulated work begun prior to approval in addition to fee in c. above~~408.75~~ 429.25
 - Verification of signatures on petition per signature1.00

PARKS, RECREATION, AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS (Chapter 18, Article II)

	City Rate	Non-City Rate	City Rate with Surcharge*	Non-City with Surcharge*
<i>Parks, Recreation & Cultural Affairs</i>				
<i>Recreation Fees w/o Youth Programs except Swim Lessons:</i>				
<i>Sports Fees:</i>				
Adult Co-Ed Softball	\$167.75 176.25	\$251.25 263.75	\$184.50 194.00	\$276.50 290.25

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Adult Men's Softball	167.75 176.25	251.25 263.75	184.50 194.00	276.50 290.25
Football/Soccer Scratch Lining (Field Preparation)	405.25 425.50	405.25 425.50	445.75 468.00	445.75 468.00
Football/Soccer Trace Lining (Field Preparation)	144.75 152.00	144.75 152.00	159.25 167.25	159.25 167.25
Baseball/Softball Game Prep for Outside Groups	87.00 91.25	87.00 91.25	95.75 100.50	95.75 100.50
Field Lighting Fee Per 2 Hours	21.00 22.00	21.00 22.00	23.00 24.25	23.00 24.25
Park Reservation Fee for Large Events	34.75 36.50	34.75 36.50	38.25 40.25	38.25 40.25
<i>MLK Fitness Center:</i>				
MLK Fitness (Adult 6 Mo. Pass)	45.25 47.50	45.25 47.50	49.75 52.25	49.75 52.25
MLK Fitness (Adult 12 Mo. Pass)	76.50 80.25	76.50 80.25	84.25 85.50	84.25 85.50
MLK Fitness (Senior 6 Mo. Pass)	19.50 20.50	19.50 20.50	21.50 22.50	21.50 22.50
MLK Fitness (Senior 12 Mo. Pass)	38.50 40.50	38.50 40.50	42.25 44.50	42.25 44.50
<i>Center Rental Cost:</i>				
Long Term Center Rentals/ per hour	41.75 43.75	41.75 43.75	46.00 48.25	46.00 48.25

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Dance Floor Fee (Thelma Boltin Center & Eastside Recreation Center Dance Room)	33.50 35.25	33.50 35.25	36.75 -38.75	36.75 -38.75
Class I - 3hr. Center Rental	422.75 444.00	422.75 444.00	465.00 488.50	465.00 -488.50
Class I - each additional hour	105.25 110.50	105.25 110.50	115.75 121.50	115.75 -121.50
Class II - 3hr. Center Rental	282.50 296.75	282.50 296.75	310.75 326.50	310.75 -326.50
Class II - each additional hour	71.75 75.25	71.75 75.25	79.00 -82.75	79.00 -82.75
Class III - 3hr. Center Rental	211.75 222.25	211.75 222.25	233.00 244.50	233.00 -244.50
Class III - each additional hour	34.75 36.50	34.75 36.50	38.25 -40.25	38.25 -40.25
Nonrefundable Reservation Fee	34.75 36.50	34.75 36.50	38.25 40.25	38.25 -40.25
Damage Deposit	300.00	300.00	300.00	300.00
Co-sponsored Rental Damage Deposit Fee	50.00 52.50	50.00 52.50	50.00 -57.75	50.00 -57.75
Kitchen Fee	71.75 75.25	71.75 75.25	79.00 -82.75	79.00 -82.75
Staffing/Personnel Per Hour Fee Per Staff	21.00 22.00	21.00 22.00	21.00 -24.25	21.00 -24.25
<i>MLK Rental Cost:</i>				
Class I - 4hr. Rental	986.25 1,035.50	986.25 1,035.50	1,085.00 1,139.00	1,085.00 1,139.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Class I - each additional hour	141.25 148.25	141.25 148.25	155.50 163.00	155.50 163.00
Class II - 3hr. Rental	422.75 444.00	422.75 444.00	465.00 488.50	465.00 488.50
Class II - each additional hour	105.25 110.50	105.25 110.50	115.75 121.50	115.75 121.50
Class III - 3hr. Rental	282.50 296.75	282.50 296.75	310.75 326.50	310.75 326.50
Class III - each additional hour	71.75 75.25	71.75 75.25	79.00 82.75	79.00 82.75
Rental Damage Deposit	300.00	300.00	300.00	300.00
Nonrefundable Reservation Fee	34.75 36.50	34.75 36.50	38.25 40.25	38.25 40.25
Meeting Room Rate (first 3 hours)	105.25 110.50	105.25 110.50	115.75 121.50	115.75 121.50
<u>Meeting Room Hourly Rate</u>	<u>36.50</u>	<u>36.50</u>	<u>40.25</u>	<u>40.25</u>
Meeting Room Rate (additional hours)	34.75 36.50	34.75 36.50	38.25 40.25	38.25 40.25
Kitchen Fee	142.50 82.75	142.50 82.75	156.75 82.75	156.75 82.75
Staffing/Personnel Per Hour Fee Per Staff	21.00 22.00	21.00 22.00	21.00 24.25	21.00 24.25
<i>Aquatic Camp Fees:</i>				
<i>Swim Lessons:</i>				

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Swimming and Diving Lessons	40.50 42.50	61.50 64.50	44.50 46.75	67.75 71.00
Water Aerobics (per class)	2.30 2.50	2.30 2.50	2.55 2.75	2.55 2.75
<i>Biathlon:</i>				
Early Bird Registration Fee	15.75 16.50	21.00 22.00	17.50 18.25	23.00 24.25
Onsite Registration Fee	21.00 22.00	31.50 33.00	23.00 24.25	34.50 36.25
<i>Pool Passes:</i>				
Adults (18—49)	110.00 115.50	164.25 172.50	121.00 127.00	180.75 189.75
Children (3—17) - Exempt from Surcharge	54.25 57.00	82.25 86.25	n/a	n/a
Seniors (50+ Older)	54.25 57.00	82.25 86.25	59.75 62.75	90.50 95.00
Special Populations	54.25 57.00	82.25 86.25	59.75 62.75	90.50 95.00
Family of 4 or less	224.75 236.00	340.50 357.50	247.25 259.50	374.50 393.25
Each additional Family Member for Family pool pass	9.50 10.00	13.50 14.25	10.50 11.00	14.75 -15.50
<i>Pool Entrance Fees:</i>				
<i>Westside Pool:</i>				
Adults	4.05 4.25	4.05 4.25	4.45 4.75	4.45 4.75

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Children and Lap Swim & Non-swimmer - Exempt from Surcharge	2.55 –2.65	2.55 –2.65	n/a	n/a
Lap Swim	n/a	n/a	2.65	2.65
Seniors (50+)	2.55 –2.65	2.55 –2.65	2.80 –n/a	2.80 –n/a
Special Populations	2.55 –2.65	2.55 –2.65	2.80 –n/a	2.80 –n/a
Infants under 3 years	0.00 –0	0.00 –0	0.00 –0	0.00 –0
Pool Pavilion Hourly Rental Fee	11.50 12.00	11.50 12.00	12.75 –13.25	12.75 –13.25
Birthday Party Package (1 st 8 children)	61.20 64.25	61.20 64.25	61.20 –n/a	61.20 –n/a
Birthday Party Package (each additional child)	2.55 –2.65	2.55 –2.65	2.55 –n/a	2.55 –n/a
<i>Northeast Pool:</i>				
Adults	3.45 –3.50	3.45 –3.50	3.80 –3.95	3.80 –3.95
Children and Lap Swim & Non-swimmer - Exempt from Surcharge	2.05 –2.15	2.05 –2.15	n/a	n/a
<u>Lap Swim</u>	<u>2.10</u>	<u>2.10</u>	<u>2.35</u>	<u>2.35</u>
Seniors (50+)	2.05 –2.15	2.05 –2.15	2.25 –n/a	2.25 –n/a
Special Populations	2.05 –2.15	2.05 –2.15	2.25 –n/a	2.25 –n/a
Infants under 3 years	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
<i>Mickle Pool:</i>				
Adults	2.55 –2.65	2.55 –2.65	2.80 –2.95	2.80 –2.95

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Children and Lap Swim & Non-swimmer - Exempt from Surcharge	1.40 1.45	1.40 1.45	n/a	n/a
<u>Lap Swim</u>	<u>1.46</u>	<u>1.46</u>	<u>1.60</u>	<u>1.60</u>
Seniors (50+)	1.40 1.45	1.40 1.45	1.55 n/a	1.55 n/a
Special Populations	1.40 1.45	1.40 1.45	1.55 n/a	1.55 n/a
Infants under 3 years	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
<i>Pool Rental Fees:</i>				
Reservation/Operational Fee	48.50 51.00	48.50 51.00	53.25 56.00	53.25 56.00
Staffing/Personnel Fee (per hour/per guard)	12.00 12.50	12.00 12.50	13.25 13.75	13.25 13.75
Clean-Up Fee	24.25 25.50	24.25 25.50	26.75 28.00	26.75 28.00
*Lane Line Rentals (per hour/per lane)	5.25 5.50	5.25 5.50	5.80 6.00	5.80 6.00
*Dive Well Rental (per hour)	11.00 11.50	11.00 11.50	12.00 12.50	12.00 12.50
WS Group Rate - per child (8 min)	2.30 2.40	2.30 2.40	2.55 n/a	2.55 n/a
WS Group Rate - per adult	3.75 4.00	3.75 4.00	4.15 4.35	4.15 4.35
NE Group Rate - per child & Birthday Party rate (8 min)	1.80 1.90	1.80 1.90	2.00 n/a	2.00 n/a
NE Group Rate - per adult	3.20 3.25	3.20 3.25	3.50 3.65	3.50 3.65
NE Pool Pavilion Hourly Rental Fee	11.50 12.00	11.50 12.00	12.75 13.25	12.75 13.25

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

NE Birthday Party Package (1st - 8 children)	13.60 <u>14.25</u>	13.60 <u>14.25</u>	16.00-15.75	16.00-15.75
MK Group Rate - per child & Birthday Party rate (8 min)	1.15-1.20	1.15-1.20	1.25-n/a	1.25-n/a
MK Group Rate - per adult	2.30-2.50	2.30-2.50	2.55-2.65	2.55-2.65
MK Birthday Party Pavilion Hourly Rental Fee	11.50 <u>12.00</u>	11.50 <u>12.00</u>	12.75-13.25	12.75-13.25
MK Birthday Party Package (1st - 8 children)	8.80-9.25	8.80-9.25	10.00-10.25	10.00-10.25
<i>Environmental Science and Cultural History Programs, Adult Access (18 & older)</i>				
Animal Homes	3.45-3.50	3.45-3.50	3.80-3.75	3.80-3.75
Aquatic Encounters	4.60-4.75	4.60-4.75	5.05-5.25	5.05-5.25
Critter Connections	4.60-4.75	4.60-4.75	5.05-5.25	5.05-5.25
Exploring Florida's Ecosystems	4.60-4.75	4.60-4.75	5.05-5.25	5.05-5.25
Farm Adventure	3.45-3.50	3.45-3.50	3.80-3.75	3.80-3.75
Farm and Forest School Days (adult)	2.95-3.00	2.95-3.00	3.25-3.25	3.25-3.25
Farm Life in the 19th Century	5.80-6.00	5.80-6.00	6.40-6.50	6.40-6.50
Feathered Friends	4.60-4.75	4.60-4.75	5.05-5.25	5.05-5.25
Florida As It Was	4.60-4.75	4.60-4.75	5.05-5.25	5.05-5.25
Green Treasure	4.60-4.75	4.60-4.75	5.05-5.25	5.05-5.25
Makin' a Livin'	4.60-4.75	4.60-4.75	5.05-5.25	5.05-5.25
Native American Life in Early Florida	5.80-6.00	5.80-6.00	6.40-6.50	6.40-6.50

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Sensing Nature	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	5.05 5.25	5.05 5.25
Stream Scene, The	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	5.05 5.25	5.05 5.25
Outreach Programs 0-15 miles away	69.50 73.00	69.50 73.00	76.50 80.25	76.50 80.25
Outreach Programs 16-30 miles away	81.00 85.00	81.00 85.00	89.00 93.50	89.00 93.50
Outreach Programs 31-45 miles away	92.75 97.50	92.75 97.50	102.00 107.25	102.00 107.25
Outreach Programs 45-60 miles away	104.25 109.50	104.25 109.50	114.75 120.50	114.75 120.50
Additional Outreach Program At Same Location	29.00 30.50	29.00 30.50	32.00 33.50	32.00 33.50
Living History Saturdays	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Barnyard Buddies	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Wildflower Walks	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Feed-a-Frog Friday	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
<i>Environmental Science and Cultural History Programs, Youth Access (under 18) - Exempt from surcharge</i>				
Animal Homes	3.45 3.50	3.45 3.50	n/a	n/a
Aquatic Encounters	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Critter Connections	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Exploring Florida's Ecosystems	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Farm Adventure	3.45 3.50	3.45 3.50	n/a	n/a

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Farm and Forest School Days (student)	1.80 2.00	1.80 2.00	n/a	n/a
Farm Life in the 19th Century	5.80 6.00	5.80 6.00	n/a	n/a
Feathered Friends	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Florida As It Was	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Green Treasure	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Makin' a Livin'	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Native American Life in Early Florida	5.80 6.00	5.80 6.00	n/a	n/a
Sensing Nature	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Stream Scene, The	4.60 4.75	4.60 4.75	n/a	n/a
Outreach Programs 0-15 miles away	69.50 73.00	69.50 73.00	n/a	n/a
Outreach Programs 16-30 miles away	81.00 85.00	81.00 85.00	n/a	n/a
Outreach Programs 31-45 miles away	92.75 97.50	92.75 97.50	n/a	n/a
Outreach Programs 45-60 miles away	104.25 109.50	104.25 109.50	n/a	n/a
Additional Outreach Program At Same Location	29.00 30.50	29.00 30.50	n/a	n/a
Living History Saturdays	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a
Barnyard Buddies	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a
Wildflower Walks	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Feed-a-Frog Friday	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a
<i>Special Events - Adult Access (18 & older)</i>				
Ghost Walk	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Fall Native Plant Sale	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Spring Native Plant Sale	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Cane Boil and <u>Fiddle Fest</u> Admission Adult	2.10 2.25	2.10 2.25	2.30 3.00	2.30 3.00
Great Air Potato Round Up <u>Invader Raider Rally</u>	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Farm & Forest Festival Adult	5.25 5.50	5.25 5.50	5.80 6.00	5.80 6.00
<i>Special Events - Youth Access (under 18) - Exempt from surcharge</i>				
Ghost Walk	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a
Fall Native Plant Sale	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a
Spring Native Plant Sale	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a
Cane Boil <u>and Fiddle Fest</u> Admission Child	1.05 2.00	1.05 2.00	n/a	n/a
Great Air Potato Round Up <u>Invader Raider Rally</u>	0.00	0.00	n/a	n/a
Farm & Forest Festival Child	3.15 3.25	3.15 3.25	n/a	n/a
<i>Additional Youth Fees Exempted from surcharge</i>				
Pop Warner Cheerleading	47.50 50.00	70.50 74.00	n/a	n/a
Pop Warner Football	96.00 100.75	143.50 150.75	n/a	n/a
Youth Basketball Ages 5—6	64.75	96.00	n/a	n/a

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

	68.00	100.75		
Youth Basketball	82.25 86.25	123.75 130.00	n/a	n/a
Holiday Camp (Weekly Rate) <u>Session</u>	46.25 50.00	69.50 74.75	n/a	n/a
Holiday Camp (Daily Rate)	11.50 12.00	17.25 18.00	n/a	n/a
Spring Break Camp	47.50 50.00	71.25 74.75	n/a	n/a
Summer Camp <u>Session</u>	47.50 50.00	71.25 74.75	n/a	n/a
After-School Fee (Daily Rate <u>Weekly Rate</u>)	3.30 17.50	5.00 26.25	n/a	n/a
Get Down Friday Dances	5.00 5.25	5.00 5.25	n/a	n/a
Kidz Out of School Program	5.50 5.75	8.40 8.75	n/a	n/a
Junior Lifeguard Camp <u>Session</u>	78.75 82.75	118.25 124.25	n/a	n/a
Earth Academy Camp <u>Session</u>	115.75 121.50	173.75 182.50	n/a	n/a
<i>Cultural Affairs Fees:</i>				
<i>Thomas Center Rental Rates</i>				
Commercial Film Shoot Fees — Prep Rate	340.00	340.00	391.00	391.00-392.75
<u>Commercial Film Shoot Fees - Daily Rate</u>	357.00	357.00	392.75	
Commercial Film Shoot Fees — Daily Rate	170.00	170.00	195.50	195.50-196.25
<u>Commercial Film Shoot Fees — Prep Rate</u>	178.50	178.50	196.25	

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Staffing/Personnel Per Hour Fee Per Staff	18.00 19.00	18.00 19.00	21.00 –24.25	21.00 –24.25
Co-sponsored Rental Events Equipment Fee <u>Youth Programs</u>	15.00 15.75	15.00 15.75	17.25 –n/a	17.25 –n/a
Co-sponsored Rentals Nonrefundable Reservation Deposit	50.00 52.50	50.00 52.50	50.00 –57.75	50.00 –57.75
<u>Overnight Storage Fee</u>	<u>50.00</u>	<u>50.00</u>	<u>55.00</u>	<u>55.00</u>
<u>Excessive Clean Up Fee</u>	<u>50.00</u>	<u>50.00</u>	<u>55.00</u>	<u>55.00</u>
<i>Spanish Court Weekday 8-5 Social, Per Hour</i>	27.25 28.50	27.25 28.50	30.00 –31.25	30.00 –31.25
Long Gallery	23.00 24.25	23.00 24.25	25.25 –26.75	25.25 –26.75
Spanish Court and Long Gallery	43.00 45.25	43.00 45.25	47.25 –49.75	47.25 –49.75
Meeting Room #102	13.25 14.00	13.25 14.00	14.50 –15.50	14.50 –15.50
Meeting Room #105	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Kitchen	19.00 20.00	19.00 20.00	21.00 –22.00	21.00 –22.00
Gallery A	8.40 –8.75	8.40 –8.75	9.25 –9.75	9.25 –9.75
Thomas Center West Gardens	35.75 37.50	35.75 37.50	39.25 –41.25	39.25 –41.25
Theatre or Turtle Court	17.75 18.75	17.75 18.75	19.50 –20.75	19.50 –20.75
Porches All Times	11.50 12.00	11.50 12.00	12.75 –13.25	12.75 –13.25

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Period Room All Times	35.75 37.50	35.75 37.50	39.25-41.25	39.25-41.25
Hallway for anything but access	17.75 18.75	17.75 18.75	19.50-20.75	19.50-20.75
Wedding Rehearsals All Times	19.00 20.00	19.00 20.00	21.00-22.00	21.00-22.00
<i>Spanish Court Evening/Weekend Social, Per Hour</i>	49.25 51.75	49.25 51.75	54.25-57.00	54.25-57.00
Long Gallery	36.75 38.50	36.75 38.50	40.50-42.25	40.50-42.25
Spanish Court and Long Gallery	83.00 87.25	83.00 87.25	91.25-96.00	91.25-96.00
Meeting Room #102	23.00 24.25	23.00 24.25	25.25-26.75	25.25-26.75
Meeting Room #105	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Kitchen	30.50 32.00	30.50 32.00	33.50-35.25	33.50-35.25
Gallery A	19.00 20.00	19.00 20.00	21.00-22.00	21.00-22.00
Thomas Center West Gardens	36.75-8.50	36.75-38.50	40.50-42.25	40.50-42.25
Theatre or Turtle Court	30.50 32.00	30.50 32.00	33.50-35.25	33.50-35.25
<i>Spanish Court Weekday Meeting, Per Hour</i>	21.00 22.00	21.00 22.00	23.00-24.25	23.00-24.25
Long Gallery	15.25 16.00	15.25 16.00	16.75-17.50	16.75-17.50

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Spanish Court and Long Gallery	28.25 29.75	28.25 29.75	31.00 -32.75	31.00 -32.75
Meeting Room #102	11.50 12.00	11.50 12.00	12.75 -13.25	12.75 -13.25
Meeting Room #105	14.25 15.00	14.25 15.00	15.75 16.50	15.75 16.50
Kitchen	7.35 -7.75	7.35 -7.75	8.10 -8.50	8.10 -8.50
Gallery A	7.35 -7.75	7.35 -7.75	8.10 -8.50	8.10 -8.50
Thomas Center West Gardens	36.75 38.50	36.75 38.50	40.50 -42.25	40.50 -42.25
Theatre or Turtle Court	30.50 32.00	30.50 32.00	33.50 -35.25	33.50 -35.25
<i>Spanish Court Evening/Weekend Meeting, Per Hour</i>	36.75 38.50	36.75 38.50	40.50 -42.25	40.50 -42.25
Long Gallery	28.25 29.75	28.25 29.75	31.00 -32.75	31.00 -32.75
Spanish Court and Long Gallery	55.75 58.50	55.75 58.50	61.25 -64.25	61.25 -64.25
Meeting Room #102	20.00 21.00	20.00 21.00	22.00 -23.00	22.00 -23.00
Meeting Room #105	24.25 25.50	24.25 25.50	26.75 -28.00	26.75 -28.00
Kitchen	8.40 8.75	8.40 8.75	9.25 -9.75	9.25 -9.75
Gallery A	11.50 12.00	11.50 12.00	12.75 -13.25	12.75 -13.25

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Thomas Center West Gardens	36.75 38.50	36.75 38.50	40.50 42.25	40.50 42.25
Theatre or Turtle Court	30.50 32.00	30.50 32.00	33.50 35.25	33.50 35.25
<i>Spanish Court Non-Profit Weekday Meeting, Per Hour</i>	14.25 15.00	14.25 15.00	15.75 16.50	15.75 16.50
Long Gallery	9.50 10.00	9.50 10.00	10.50 11.00	10.50 11.00
Spanish Court and Long Gallery	17.75 18.75	17.75 18.75	19.50 20.75	19.50 20.75
Meeting Room #102	10.50 11.00	10.50 11.00	11.50 12.00	11.50 12.00
Meeting Room #105	13.25 14.00	13.25 14.00	14.50 15.50	14.50 15.50
Kitchen	6.30 6.50	6.30 6.50	6.95 7.25	6.95 7.25
Gallery A Storage	7.35 7.75	7.35 7.75	8.10 8.50	8.10 8.50
Thomas Center West Gardens	36.75 38.50	36.75 38.50	40.50 42.25	40.50 42.25
Theatre or Turtle Court	30.50 32.00	30.50 32.00	33.50 35.25	33.50 35.25
<i>Spanish Court Non-Profit Weekend Meeting, Per Hour</i>	21.50 22.50	21.50 22.50	23.75 24.75	23.75 24.75
Long Gallery	15.25 16.00	15.25 16.00	16.75 17.50	16.75 17.50
Spanish Court and Long Gallery	28.25 29.75	28.25 29.75	31.00 32.75	31.00 32.75

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Meeting Room #102	13.25 14.00	13.25 14.00	14.50 -15.50	14.50 15.50
Meeting Room #105	14.25 15.00	14.25 15.00	15.75 16.50	15.75 16.50
Kitchen	7.35 -7.75	7.35 -7.75	8.10 8.50	8.10 8.50
Gallery A	7.35 -7.75	7.35 -7.75	8.10 -8.50	8.10 -8.50
Thomas Center West Gardens	36.75 38.50	36.75 38.50	40.50 42.25	40.50 42.25
Theatre or Turtle Court	30.50 32.00	30.50 32.00	33.50 35.25	33.50 35.25
<u>Sweetwater Wetlands Park</u>				
<u>Bicyclist and Pedestrians</u>	<u>1.80</u>	<u>1.80</u>	<u>2.00</u>	<u>2.00</u>
<u>Annual Pass</u>	<u>67.50</u>	<u>67.50</u>	<u>75.00</u>	<u>75.00</u>
<u>Seasonal Pass (May-September, 2015 One time only)</u>	<u>22.50</u>	<u>22.50</u>	<u>25.00</u>	<u>25.00</u>
<i>Downtown Festival and Art Show</i>				
Application Fee	21.00 22.00	21.00 22.00	23.00 -24.00	23.00 -24.00
Competitive Booth	246.75 259.00	246.75 259.00	271.50 285.00	271.50 -285.00
Non-Competitive Booth	225.75 237.00	225.75 237.00	248.25 260.00	248.25 -260.00
Community Booth	42.00	42.00	46.25 -48.00	46.25 -48.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

	44.00	44.00		
Food Booth	367.50 386.00	367.50 386.00	404.25 425.00	404.25 425.00
T-Shirt Sales	12.50 13.25	12.50 13.25	14.00 14.00	14.00 14.00
Poster Sales	12.50 13.25	12.50 13.25	14.00 14.00	14.00 14.00
<i>Hoggetowne Medieval Faire</i>				
<i>Ticket Sales</i>				
Adult	14.75 15.50	14.75 15.50	17.00	17.00
Youth (Exempt from Surcharge)	7.00	7.00	n/a	n/a
<i>School Day</i>				
General Admission Adult	7.35 7.75	7.35 7.75	8.00	8.00
General Admission Youth (Exempt from Surcharge)	3.50	3.50	n/a	n/a
Pre-Registered Adult	4.20 4.50	4.20 4.50	5.00	5.00
Pre-Registered Youth (Exempt from Surcharge)	2.00	2.00	n/a	n/a
<i>T-Shirt Sales</i>	10.50 11.00	10.50 11.00	12.00	12.00
<i>Booth Fees (Sales and Demos)</i>				

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

12 × 12	189.00 198.50	189.00 198.50	208.00	208.00
15 × 15	215.25 226.00	215.25 226.00	236.75	236.75
20 × 20	262.50 275.75	262.50 275.75	288.75	288.75
25 × 25	304.50 319.75	304.50 319.75	335.00	335.00
25 × 30	357.00 374.75	357.00 374.75	392.75	392.75
<i>Artisan Made Sales Only</i>				
12 × 12	220.50 231.50	220.50 231.50	242.50	242.50
15 × 15	252.00 264.50	252.00 264.50	277.25	277.25
20 × 20	294.00 308.75	294.00 308.75	323.50	323.50
25 × 25	336.00 352.75	336.00 352.75	369.	369.50
25 × 30	388.50 408.00	388.50 408.00	427.25	427.25
<i>Non-Artisan Made Vendors</i>				
12 × 12	341.25 358.25	341.25 358.25	375.50	375.50
15 × 15	357.00 374.75	357.00 374.75	392.75	392.75

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

20 × 20	399.00 419.00	399.00 419.00	439.00	439.00
25 × 25	441.00 463.00	441.00 463.00	485.00	485.00
25 × 30	493.50 518.25	493.50 518.25	542.75	542.75
<i>Games</i>				
15 × 15	262.50 275.75	262.50 275.75	288.75	288.75
20 × 20	315.00 330.75	315.00 330.75	346.50	346.50
25 × 25	367.50 386.00	367.50 386.00	404.25	404.25
25 × 30	420.00 441.00	420.00 441.00	462.00	462.00
<i>Rides</i>				
15 × 15	304.50 319.75	304.50 319.75	335.00	335.00
20 × 20	357.00 374.75	357.00 374.75	392.75	392.75
25 × 25	409.50 430.00	409.50 430.00	450.50	450.50
25 × 30	462.00 485.00	462.00 485.00	508.25	508.25
<i>Food</i>				
15 × 15	488.25	488.25	537.00	537.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

	512.75	512.75		
20 × 20	530.25 556.75	530.25 556.75	583.25	583.25
25 × 25	572.25 600.75	572.25 600.75	629.50	629.50
25 × 30	614.25 645.00	614.25 645.00	675.75	675.75
*The surcharge on fees, except where identified in Appendix A as "n/a" (not applicable), is a mandatory addition to each fee and may not be waived.				

PEDDLERS, SOLICITORS AND CANVASSERS:

Annual Spring Arts Festival (§ 19-1):

- Permit application fee (nonrefundable) ~~.....6.75~~ 7.00
- Permit to authorize exhibition in the designated competitive area ~~.....27.00~~ 28.25
- Permit to authorize exhibition in the designated noncompetitive area ~~.....13.50~~ 14.25

Vending booth permit (§ 19-92) ~~.....64.00~~ 67.25

Itinerant food vendor permit (§ 19-92) ~~.....64.00~~ 67.25

Burglar alarm operators:

Application for alarm or annual renewal application ~~.....20.50~~ 21.50

Note: Proportionately adjusted for initial periods exceeding one year (§ 21.52)

First false alarm with valid permit ~~.....0.00~~

First false alarm without valid permit or second false alarm, each ~~.....66.25~~ 69.50

Third and fourth false alarms, each ~~.....66.25~~ 69.50

Fifth and sixth false alarms, each ~~.....127.50~~ 134.00

Seventh and eighth false alarms, each ~~.....255.25~~ 268.00

Ninth and above false alarms, each ~~.....510.50~~ 536.00

False alarm from non-permitted system, additional fee* ~~.....255.25~~ 268.00

*Note: Reduced to ~~\$61.00~~ 64.00 if application filed within ten days and issued within ten days thereafter (§ 21-53)

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Alarm permit reinstatement fee after revocation (§ 21-54)~~64.00~~ 67.25

Failure to respond when requested by police (§ 21-56)~~64.00~~ 67.25

Failure to deactivate alarm within 15 minutes (§ 21-57)~~159.50~~ 167.50

Prohibited devices:

Automatic dialing device (§ 21-61(a))~~159.50~~ 167.50

"One Plus Panic Alarm" or single-action switch (§ 21-61(b) and (c))~~64.00~~ 67.25

Auxiliary power supply less than four-hour minimum (§ 21-62)~~159.50~~ 167.50

Burglar alarm monitoring companies:

Annual registration fee (§ 21-58)~~127.50~~ 134.00

Failure to register or to maintain records for one year (§ 21-58)~~159.50~~ 167.50

Failure to verify alarm (§ 21-59)~~159.50~~ 167.50

Burglar alarm system contractors:

Annual registration fee (§ 21-60(a))~~127.50~~ 134.00

Failure to register annually (§ 21-60(a))~~159.50~~ 167.50

Failure to meet UL or ANSI standards (§ 21-60(d))~~159.50~~ 167.50

Activation of unpermitted alarm (§ 21-60(e))~~159.50~~ 167.50

Causing false alarm during servicing or inspection, each violation (§ 21-60(f))~~159.50~~ 167.50

Installation, maintenance, repair, alteration or servicing by unregistered contractor, each violation (§ 21-60(b))~~159.50~~ 167.50

Failure to furnish agents with identification cards (§ 21-60(c))~~64.00~~ 67.25

Failure to provide operators with permit application - each violation (§ 21-60(g))~~64.00~~ 67.25

Burglar alarm systems:

Assessment fee per false alarm~~13.50~~ 14.25

Trespass towing:

Trespass towing application process fee (section 14.5-29)

a. Properties 1—5, each~~57.00~~ 59.75

b. Properties 6—10, each~~42.50~~ 44.75

c. Properties 11—15, each~~36.50~~ 38.25

d. Properties 16—20, each~~30.50~~ 32.00

e. Properties 20 or more, each~~18.00~~ 19.00

Registration—Owners, operators and vehicles:

- (a) Trespass Towing Service permit ~~.....318.50~~ 334.50
Late penalty, payment not timely filed, per month ~~.....29.00~~ 30.50
- (b) Trespass Towing Operators permit ~~.....41.50-0~~ 48.50
- (c) Replacement permits ~~.....~~ ½ permit fee
- (d) Trespass Towing vehicle registration, annually per vehicle ~~.....29.00~~ 30.50
- Immobilization:
 - a. Annual permit fee ~~.....318.50~~ 334.50
 - b. Late penalty, annual payment not timely filed, per month ~~.....29.00~~ 30.50
 - c. Operator permit, per year ~~.....41.50~~ 12.00
 - d. Replacement permit ~~.....~~ ½ permit fee
 - e. Vehicle (Medallion) permit, annually per vehicle ~~.....29.00~~ 30.50
 - f. Removal 69.50

REGISTERED DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIPS:

Filing fee for declaration of registered domestic partnership

- City residents ~~.....41.50~~ 12.00
- Noncity residents ~~.....23.00~~ 24.25

Fee for amending or terminating the declaration of registered domestic partnership

- City residents ~~.....41.50~~ 12.00
- Noncity residents ~~.....23.00~~ 24.25

SECONDHAND GOODS:

Secondhand dealers—Jewelry, metal, coins:

- a. Permit (§ 22-18):
 - 1. Initial issuance ~~.....67.25~~ 70.50
 - 2. Renewal ~~.....33.75~~ 35.50
- b. Change of location (§ 22-19 ~~.....43.50~~) 14.25

STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES:

- (1) *Permit for congregating on streets and sidewalks* (§ 26-189 ~~.....33.75~~) 35.50
- (2) *Permit to remove, construct, alter curb, driveway, gutter, etc. (excluding new residential construction)* (§ 23-89(b)):
 - a. First driveway ~~.....33.75~~ 35.50
 - b. Each additional driveway ~~.....6.75~~ 7.00

TAXATION:

- (1) *Business tax receipt transfer to new owner* (§ 25-45(a)) ~~.....4.00~~ 4.25

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

- (2) *Business tax receipt transfer to new location* (§ 25-45(b))~~4.00~~ 4.25

TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES:

- (1) *Parking violations* (§ 26-46(d)):

- a. Parking in a metered space, the meter for which is expired~~18.75~~ 19.75
- b. Unlawfully parking on private property~~42.00~~ 44.00
- c. Unlawfully parking in any tow-away zone, except as otherwise herein stated~~54.75~~ 54.25
- d. Unlawfully parking in a space, including the access area, provided for the disabled, either by governmental or nongovernmental entities ~~250.00~~ 262.50(per Section 316.008(4), F.S.)
- e. Unlawfully parking in a fire hydrant or fire station safety zone ~~30.00~~ 31.50, plus a \$3.00 surcharge to fund firefighter training programs (per section 316.008(5), F.S.).
- f. All other violations, including parking in a space for a time longer than lawfully permitted in the parking space~~28.25~~ 29.75

- (2) *Parking in fire lanes* (§ 26-47.1) ~~54.75~~ 54.25, plus a \$3.00 surcharge to fund firefighter training programs (per § 316.008(5), F.S.)

- (3) In addition to any other fee or charge required under subsections (1) and (2) above, a ~~3.25~~ 3.50 surcharge shall be assessed for each violation to fund the school crossing guard program.

- (4) Parking in the Central City District in violation of § 26-50.1~~134.00~~ 140.75

- (5) In addition to any other fee, charge or cost required under subsection (1), (2), (3) and (4) above and (8) below, \$2.00 shall be assessed as court costs for each court contested infraction to fund criminal justice education degree programs and training courses, including basic recruit training as authorized by F.S. §§ 318.18(11) and 938.15.

- (6) Delinquent administrative fees (§ 26-46(d)):

Administrative fees not paid within:

- a. Seven calendar days of citation being issued or, within four days, excluding weekends and holidays, of denial of an affidavit of explanation, whichever is later~~11.00~~ 11.50
- b. Fourteen calendar days of citation being issued~~27.50~~ 29.00

Delinquency fees referenced in (6)a. and (6)b. are cumulative.

- (7) An administrative fee of ~~\$66.25~~ 69.50 shall be assessed for the costs associated with booting/immobilizing a vehicle that has three or more unpaid parking tickets (§ 26-53).

UTILITIES:

- (1) *Electricity*:

- a. Reserved.
- b. Reserved.
- c. Reserved.
- d. General Service, Time-of-Demand meter installation (§ 27-21200.00
- e. Breaking of meter-pan seal (§ 27-26.2(e))10.00
- f. Residential service rates (§ 27-27):
 1. Base rate. The rates to be charged and collected for electric energy furnished by the city to consumers for residential service are hereby fixed as follows:

Non-time-differentiated rate. All residential customers may elect service at this rate:

- (A) Customer charge, per month12.75
- (B) First 250 kilowatt hours per month, per kWh
 - Generation, taxable fuel0.0065
 - Generation, non-fuel0.01001
 - Transmission0.00080
 - Distribution0.01369
 - Total, per kWh0.0310
- (C) All kWh per month between 250 and 750 kilowatt hours per month per kWh.
 - Generation, taxable fuel0.0065
 - Generation, non-fuel0.0144
 - Transmission0.0012
 - Distribution0.0199
 - Total per kWh0.0420
- (D) All kWh per month over 750, per kWh
 - Generation charge, taxable fuel0.0065
 - Generation, non-fuel0.0315
 - Transmission charge0.0026
 - Distribution charge0.0434
 - Total charge, per kWh0.0840

2. Fuel and purchased power adjustment. (See section 27-28.)

3. Minimum monthly bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the customer charge.

4. All bills rendered will express charges in terms of total charge per kWh.

g. General service rates (§ 27-27):

1. Base rate.

(i) Non-demand. The rates to be charged and collected for electric energy furnished by the city to consumers for general service, non-demand are hereby fixed as follows:

- (A) Customer charge, per month29.50
- (B) First 1,500 kilowatt hours per month, per kWh
 - Generation charge, taxable fuel0.0065
 - Generation charge, non-fuel0.0243
 - Transmission charge0.0021

- Distribution charge0.0361
- Total charge, per kWh0.0690
- (C) All kWh per month over 1,500, per kWh
- Generation charge, taxable fuel0.0065
- Generation charge, non-fuel0.03640
- Transmission charge0.00310
- Distribution charge0.05400
- Total charge, per kWh0.10000
- (D) Minimum monthly bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the customer charge.
- (E) All bills rendered will express charges in terms of total charge per kWh.
- (ii) Time-of-use-rate. All general service non-demand customers may elect service at this rate, which will be served at this rate.
- (A) Customer charge, per month40.00
- (B) Energy charge:
- All energy used on-peak per kWh0.162
- All energy used off-peak, per kWh0.038
- Note: To calculate the true ratio of on-peak to off-peak energy costs, the fuel Adjustment per kWh should be added to the above-stated energy charges. On-peak Period shall be as follows: Weekdays, 6:00 a.m. through 10:00 p.m., excluding holidays. Off-peak Periods shall be all periods not included in on-peak periods.
- (C) Transfer to non-time-of-use rate. Customers who elect to take service under the time-of-use rate shall have the option to transfer to the non-time-of-use rate any time during the initial term of service; however, such customer who subsequently elects to take service under the time-of-use rate at the same service location shall be required to remain on the time-of-use-rate for a minimum term of twelve (12) consecutive months.
- (iii) Demand. The rates to be charged and collected for electric energy furnished by the city to consumers for general service demand for all monthly bills which are for the first time rendered and postmarked as indicated are hereby fixed as follows:
- (A) Customer charge, per month100.00
- (B) Demand charge, per kW, per month:
- Generation charge3.25
- Transmission charge0.69
- Distribution charge4.56
- Total charge, per kW8.50

Note: The billing demand is the highest demand established during the month.

The demand shall be integrated over a thirty (30) minute period.

(C) Energy charge, all kWh, per month:

Generation charge, taxable fuel0.0065

Generation charge, non-fuel0.0271

Transmission charge0.0017

Distribution charge0.0047

Total charge, per kWh0.0400

(D) Fuel and purchased power adjustment. (See section 27-28.)

(E) Minimum monthly bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the monthly customer charge plus thirty-five (35) times the demand charge. For those customers with an established demand of less than 50 kilowatts who have entered into an agreement for service under this schedule, the minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the monthly customer charge plus 35 times the demand charge.

(F) All bills rendered will express charges in terms of total charges per kWh or kW.

(iv) Time-of-use rate. All general service demand customers may elect service at this rate, except that the city may, at its option, limit the number of customers and type of businesses which will be served at this rate.

(A) Customer charge, per month100.00

(B) Demand charge, per kW, per month8.50

(C) Energy charge:

All energy used on-peak per kWh0.072

All energy used off-peak, per kWh0.023

Note: To calculate the true ratio of on-peak to off-peak energy costs, the fuel and purchased power adjustment per kWh should be added to the above-stated energy charges. On-peak period shall be as follows: Weekdays, 6:00 a.m. through 10:00 p.m., excluding holidays. Off-peak periods shall be all periods not included in on-peak periods.

(D) Transfer to non-time-of-use rate. Customers who elect to take service under the time-of-use rate shall have the option to transfer to the non-time-of-use rate any time during the initial term of service; however, any such customer who subsequently elects to take service under the time-of-use rate at the same service location shall be required to remain on the time-of-use rate for a minimum term of twelve (12) consecutive months.

2. Primary service discount. All general service customers whose demand has been estimated to be four hundred (400) kilowatts or more, by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee, who are metered at primary voltage (twelve (12) kilovolts), and who own or lease all transformation and distribution facilities on the customer side

of the metering point, shall receive credit of fifteen cents (\$0.15) per kW applied to the monthly demand charge.

3. Primary metering discount. All general service customers who are metered at primary voltage (twelve (12) kilovolts) shall receive a credit of two (2) percent of the monthly base rate energy and demand charges. Metering voltage will be determined by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee.
 4. Facilities leasing adjustment. All general service demand customers who desire the benefits of a single-point-of-service metering, but do not wish to make the required investment in transformation and distribution facilities beyond the metering point, and whose demand has been established to be four hundred (400) kilowatts or more by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee, may request the city to make such investment in these facilities. The city shall provide, install, operate, and maintain the desired facilities and lease them to the qualified customer for a monthly consideration of one and one-half (1.5) percent of the installed cost of the facilities.
- h. Large power service rates (§ 27-27):
1. Base rate. The rates to be charged and collected for energy furnished by the city to consumers for large power service are hereby fixed as follows:
 - (A) Customer charge, per month:350.00
 - (B) Demand charge, per kW, per month:
 - Generation charge3.46
 - Transmission charge0.67
 - Distribution charge4.37
 - Total charge, per kW8.50

Note: The billing demand is the highest demand established during the month.

The demand shall be integrated over a thirty (30) minute period.
 - (C) Energy charge, all kWh, per month:
 - Generation charge, taxable fuel0.0065
 - Generation charge, non-fuel0.0198
 - Transmission charge0.0037
 - Distribution charge0.006
 - Total charge, per kWh0.036
 - (D) Fuel and purchased power adjustment. (See Section 27-28).
 2. Time-of-use rate. All large power customers may elect service at this rate, except that the city may, at its option, limit the number of customers and type of businesses which will be served at this rate.
 - (A) Customer charge, per month350.00
 - (B) Demand charge, per kW, per month8.50
 - (C) Energy charge:
 - All energy used on-peak, per kWh0.0660

All energy used off-peak, per kWh0.0200

Note: To calculate the true ratio of on-peak to off-peak energy costs, the fuel adjustment per kWh should be added to the above-stated energy charges. On-peak period shall be as follows: Weekdays, 6:00 a.m. through 10:00 p.m., excluding holidays. Off-peak periods shall be all periods not included in on-peak periods.

- (D) Transfer to non-time-of-use rate. Customers who elect to take service under the time-of-use rate shall have the option to transfer to the non-time-of-use rate any time during the initial term of service; however, any such customer who subsequently elects to take service under the time-of-use rate at the same service location shall be required to remain on the time-of-use rate for a minimum term of twelve (12) consecutive months.
- (E) Fuel and purchased power adjustment. (See section 27-28).
- (F) Minimum monthly bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the monthly customer charge plus seven hundred (700) times the demand charge.
- (G) All bills rendered will express charges in terms of total charges per kWh or kW.
- 3. Primary service discount. All large power service customers who are metered at primary voltage (twelve (12) kilovolts), and who own or lease all transformation and distribution facilities on the customer side of the metering point, shall receive credit of fifteen cents (\$0.15) per kW applied to the monthly demand charge.
- 4. Primary metering discount. All large power service customers who are metered at primary voltage (twelve (12) kilovolts) shall receive a credit of two (2) percent of the monthly base rate energy and demand charges. Metering voltage will be determined by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee.
- 5. Facilities leasing adjustment. All large power service demand customers who desire the benefits of a single-point-of-service metering, but do not wish to make the required investment in transformation and distribution facilities beyond the metering point, may request the city to make such investment in these facilities. The city shall provide, install, operate, and maintain the desired facilities and lease them to the qualified customer for a monthly consideration of one and one-half (1½) percent of the installed cost of the facilities.
- i. Distributed Resources Rates (§ 27-27):
 - 1. General Provision.
 - (A) Net Metering administrative fees:
Customer-owned renewable generation shall be charged the following administrative fees for review and inspection:
 - (i) Tier 1 - 10 kW DC or less: no fees
 - (ii) Tier 2 - greater than 10 kW and less than or equal to 100 kW DC: \$400.00
 - (iii) Tier 3 - greater than 100 kW and less than or equal to 2 MW DC: \$1,000.00
 - (iv) In the event that the city decides that an interconnection study is necessary, the customer may be charged additional fees and/or appropriate cost recovery.
 - (B) Non-solar Distributed Resource(s): Non-solar distributed resources shall be credited at a rate based upon the utility's avoided cost as negotiated by contract.

(C) Solar Energy Purchase Agreement/Solar Feed In-Tariff (SEPA): This rate shall be applicable to all classes of electric customers and non-customers located within the utility electric distribution service area.

- (i) Energy generated from a qualified SPDR shall be purchased at non-negotiated rates as set forth in the SEPA.
- (ii) Each SPDR system requires a separate SEPA, which will be in effect for a term no longer than the balance of the calendar year in which the contract is executed plus 20 calendar years, unless sooner terminated under the terms of the SEPA.
- (iii) To become and remain "qualified," the SPDR shall adhere to all conditions and terms of applicable utility interconnection agreements promulgated by the general manager or his/her designee and applicable federal, state and local safety, building and other applicable codes.
- (iv) The general manager, or his/her designee, may cease to commit to additional capacity, or offer new contracts after a total of 4 MW (DC) of solar photovoltaic distributed generation capacity per year has been committed by the utility system, or as safety and reliability of the utility system require.
- (v) The general manager, or his/her designee, is authorized to establish the administrative guidelines and procedures governing the application process, the design review and interconnection process, the form of contract, and any policies related to the status of applications in excess of 4 MW (DC) capacity in a given calendar year, subject to City Commission policy review.
- (vi) All Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) and other environmental attributes, including, but not limited to carbon offset credits that accrue as a result of operation of the SPDR under a SEPA or receiving payment under the Feed-In - Tariff shall be the property of the utility.
- (vii) The solar Feed-in-Tariff class determination is defined here within and the rate is established in accordance with the following schedule which is subject to periodic review and subsequent revision to the rates as recommended by the general manager, or his/her designee, and adopted by the City Commission in the exercise of its sole discretion:

Class 1: Building or pavement-mounted systems less than or equal to 10 kW DC or freestanding ground-mounted systems (non-building or non-pavement-mounted) less than or equal to 10 kW DC.

Class 2: Building or pavement-mounted systems greater than 10 kW DC and less than or equal to 300 kW DC, or freestanding ground-mounted systems (non-building or non-pavement-mounted) greater than 10 kW DC and less than or equal to 25 kW DC.

Class 3: Freestanding ground-mounted systems (non-building or non-pavement-mounted) greater than 25 kW DC.

Contract Entered into Under This Policy During Calendar Year	Fixed Rate per kWh Applied Uniformly From the Date of Installation Through December 31	Fixed Rate \$/kWh Over Life of Contract		
		Class 1	Class 2	Class 3

2009	2029	\$0.32	n/a	\$0.26
2010	2030	\$0.32	n/a	\$0.26
2011	2031	\$0.32	\$0.29	\$0.24
2012	2032	\$0.24	\$0.22	\$0.19
2013	2033	\$0.21	\$0.18	\$0.15

- (viii) Each SPDR installed after December 31, 2010, will be subject to a monthly charge to cover administrative expenses, including, but not limited to the capital cost of the meter, meter reading, and payment processing. This charge will be equal to the monthly electric customer charge designated for each customer class in this Appendix A corresponding to a customer with an electric demand in kilowatts that is equal to the SPDR DC power capacity. This monthly charge will be deducted from monthly payments received from the utility for electricity purchased from the SPDR. The following schedule designates the corresponding monthly electric customer charge to be applied given the SPDR DC power capacity.

SPDR DC Power Capacity	Customer Charge Applied Based on Corresponding Customer Class
0—10 kilowatts DC	Residential Service
10.01—49.99 kilowatts DC	General Service Non-Demand
50.00—999.99 kilowatts DC	General Service Demand
1,000 and over kilowatts DC	Large Power Service

- (ix) Each SPDR applying for capacity space in the solar Feed-In-Tariff program after December 31, 2010, will be subject to a nonrefundable processing fee to recover administrative expenses associated with the SEPA application process. This fee will be due at the time of SEPA application submittal and will be \$500.00 for Class 1 systems, and \$1,200.00 for Class 2 and Class 3 systems as designated in Section 27-27(C)(vii).
- (x) Class 2 and Class 3 systems, as designated in Section 27-27(C)(vii), will be subject to a capacity reservation deposit equal to \$30.00 per kilowatt based

on the SPDR DC power capacity specified in the SEPA submittal application. The reservation deposit will be returned to the applicant upon construction and interconnection of the SPDR to the distribution grid within the timeframe allotted for completion. Failure to construct and interconnect the SPDR within the applicable timeframe will result in forfeiture of the reservation deposit. Class 1 systems are exempt from the capacity reservation deposit.

j. Interruptible-Curtailable service rider (§ 27-27):

1. General provisions.

- (A) Customer must make application to the city for service under this Rider and the city must approve such application before service hereunder commences.
- (B) Conditions pertaining to any application of this Rider shall be stipulated to by contract between the city and the customer receiving service hereunder. Such contract shall be for a minimum term of ten (10) years.
- (C) All terms and conditions under the applicable Large Power Schedule shall apply to service supplied to the customer except as modified by this Rider.
- (D) Service under this rider is subject to interruption/curtailment during any time period that electric power capacity and energy delivered hereunder is required from interruptible/curtailable load to a) maintain service to the city's firm power customers and firm power sales commitments, or b) supply emergency Interchange service to another utility for its firm load obligations only, or c) when the price of power available to the city from other sources exceeds 15 cents (\$0.15) per kWh.
- (E) The city reserves the right to interrupt/curtail electric services at least once each calendar year in order to test the availability or operability of interruptible/curtailable capacity, irrespective of city system capacity available or operating conditions.
- (F) Pursuant to any agreement to provide service hereunder, the city and customers may stipulate for the provision of "Buy-Through" service for customers to replace power during times of interruption or curtailment pursuant to General Provisions (D) subsection c above. For all "Buy-Through" services purchased on behalf of customers, customers shall pay the city three dollars (\$3.00) per MWh for such energy as well as reimburse the city for associated energy and transmission costs necessary to affect the delivery of "Buy-Through" energy to the city's system for customers.
- (G) The city shall make reasonable efforts to provide advance notice to the customer of an impending interruption/curtailment of service sufficient to enable the customer to modify its operations or avail itself to the "Buy-Through" provision in General Provisions "F," above.
- (H) Any contract for curtailable service hereunder shall specify a Non-Curtailable Demand. The contract Non-Curtailable Demand may be revised, from time to time, on a prospective basis only, by mutual consent of the city and the customer.
- (I) Upon each curtailment request by the city, it shall be the customer's responsibility to curtail its energy demand fulfilled pursuant to General Provision "F," above. If the customer fails to so curtail its energy demand, the customer shall refund to the city 1.25 times (125% of) the total amount of discounts or demand credits granted to customer, pursuant to this Rider, over the preceding twelve (12) billing periods.

2. Application of discount. For service hereunder, a discount of one dollar twenty-five cents (\$1.25) shall be applied to the normally applicable Demand (kW) Charge, inclusive of any other applicable discounts.
- k. Retained, Expanded or Attracted Load Service Rider (§ 27-27):
1. General Provisions.
 - (A) Customer must make application to the city for service under this Rider and the city must approve such application before service hereunder commences.
 - (B) Conditions pertaining to any application of this Rider shall be stipulated to by contract between the city and the customer receiving service hereunder which terms are supplemental to the applicable provisions of this Code of Ordinances. Such contract shall be for a minimum term of ten (10) years.
 - (C) All terms and conditions under the normally applicable Rate Schedule, either General Service Demand or Large Power, shall apply to service supplied to the customer except as modified by this Rider.
 2. Application of discount. For service hereunder, a percentage discount shall be applied to the normally applicable Customer Charge, Demand (kW) Charge and Energy (kWh) Charge, inclusive of any other applicable discounts. The maximum discount applicable hereunder for any twelve-month period shall be 13.0%. Percentage discounts shall be specified for each of the four twelve-month billing periods, beginning with the first monthly billing period for service hereunder and continuing through the forty-eighth (48th) billing period. Discounts are not applicable beyond the forty-eighth (48th) billing period. Hence:

Billing Period	Discount
1st - 12th Billing period	To be negotiated
13th - 24th Billing period	To be negotiated
25th - 36th Billing period	To be negotiated
37th - 48th Billing period	To be negotiated

- l. Business Partners Rate Discount Rider (§ 27-27):
1. General Provisions.
 - (A) Customer must make application to the city for service under this Rider and the city must approve such application before service hereunder commences.
 - (B) Conditions pertaining to any application of this Rider shall be stipulated to by contract between the city and the customer receiving service hereunder which terms are supplemental to the applicable provisions of this Code of Ordinances. Such contract shall be for a minimum term of ten (10) years.
 - (C) The percentage discounts applicable hereunder shall be available to any customer that had entered into a contract for the provision of retail electric

service by the city prior to October 1, 1997 and such contract has a termination date at least ten (10) years after October 1, 1997.

(D) All terms and conditions under the normally applicable Schedule, either General Service Non-Demand, General Service Demand, or Large Power, shall apply to service supplied to the customer except as modified by this Rider.

(E) No new Business Partners Rider applications shall be accepted after September 30, 2006. Contracts in effect as of October 1, 2006, will remain in effect until expiration under the existing contract terms.

2. Application of discount. For service hereunder, a percentage discount shall be applied to the normally applicable Customer Charge, Demand (kW) Charge and Energy (kWh) Charge, inclusive of any other applicable discounts. The discount applicable hereunder for customers in the General Service Non-Demand, General Service Demand and Large Power rate classes shall be according to the following schedule:

Business Partners Rider Executed:

Rate Class	Before April 1, 2002	On or After April 1, 2002
	Maximum Discount	Maximum Discount
General Service Non-Demand	7%	7%
General Service Demand	7%	10%
Large Power	10%	13%

Discounts are not applicable beyond the one hundred twentieth (120th) billing period unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the City and customer.

3. Contract period. Customers requesting service hereunder must enter into a contract designating the city as the customer's exclusive supplier of electricity for a minimum initial term of ten (10) years. Either party may terminate the contract at the end of the initial term or at the end of any subsequent term, pursuant to provisions stipulated to in the contract. At the sole discretion of the city, discounts available under this Rider may be withdrawn or adjusted if a change occurs to the customer's normally applicable Rate Schedule, resulting from either the customer's request or from the city's reclassification of the customer due to changes in the customer's load. If the customer violates any terms and conditions of this Rider, the contract under this Rider, or ordinances and policies of the city relating to utility services, the city may discontinue service under this Rider. In the event of early termination of any contract under this Rider, the customer will be required to pay the city any costs due to such early termination, including reimbursement of discounts granted to the extent stipulated to in the contract.

m. Public streetlight service rates (§ 27-29.1):

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

1. Monthly rental charges for GRU standard public streetlight fixtures (does not include underground civil infrastructure costs or pole rental fees):

Fixture Description	Monthly charge per fixture
Group 1 Flood Lights	
Light Type 7 — 400 watt MV Flood Light*	\$11.50
Light Type 10 — 400 watt HPS Flood Light	11.00
Light Type 12 — 250 watt HPS Flood Light	9.75
Light Type 22 — 400 watt MH Flood Light	13.75
Group 1 Luminaires	
Light Type 3 - 175 watt MV Area Light*	8.00
Light Type 11 — 100 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey	7.75
Light Type 13 — 100 watt HPS Area Light*	8.00
Light Type 14 — 150 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey	8.25
Group 2 Luminaires	
Light Type 4 — 250 watt HPS Non Cutoff Street Light*	12.00
Light Type 5 — 400 watt MV Non Cutoff Street Light*	12.00
Light Type 6 — 400 watt HPS Non Cutoff Street Light*	12.00
Light Type 16 — 250 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey	10.25
Light Type 23 — 400 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey*	11.75
Group 3 Luminaires	

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Light Type 24 — 400 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Black	18.00
Light Type 31 — 250 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Black	16.75
Light Type 32 — 150 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Black	16.00
Group 1 Decorative Lights	
Light Type 2 — 175 watt MV Post Top Street Light Conical Style*	13.50
Light Type 15 — 150 watt HPS Bronze Decorative Shoe Box Style	11.25
Light Type 19 — 100 watt HPS Post Top Street Light Conical Style	13.50
Light Type 25 — 100 watt HPS Cutoff Lantern Style Street Light*	14.50
Group 2 Decorative Lights	
Light Type 17 — 400 watt MH Round Cutoff Roadway Light Black	23.25
Light Type 26 — 100 watt HPS Granville Style Light*	29.75
Light Type 28 — 100 watt MV Pedestrian Street Light Coach Style*	35.00
Light Type 29 — 100 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Traditional Style	32.00
Group 3 Decorative Lights	
Light Type 27 — 100 watt HPS Domus Style Light	33.75
Light Type 30 — 100 watt MH Cutoff Street Light Traditional Style	33.00
Light Type 33 — 200 watt HPS Renaissance II Style Light	36.00
Light Type 34 — 200 watt HPS Renaissance IV Style Light	36.75
LED Roadway Luminaries	
Light Type 38 — LED Roadway Light 1 Gray (100 watt equivalent)	19.35

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Light Type 39 — LED Roadway Light 2 Gray (150 watt equivalent)	20.83
Light Type 40 — LED Roadway Light 3 Gray (250 watt equivalent)	24.01
Light Type 41 — LED Roadway Light 4 Gray (400 watt equivalent)	28.72
Light Type 42 — LED Roadway Light 2 Black (150 watt equivalent)	20.83
Light Type 43 — LED Roadway Light 3 Black (250 watt equivalent)	24.01
Light Type 44 — LED Roadway Light 4 Black (400 watt equivalent)	28.72

* Not Available for Installation

Monthly kWh per fixture based on wattage:	
100 watt	41
150 watt	62
175 watt	72
250 watt	103
400 watt	164
1,000 watt	410
LED Type 38	15
LED Type 39	19
LED Type 40	55
LED Type 41	105
LED Type 42	19

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

LED Type 43	55
LED Type 44	105

2. Monthly rental charges for GRU standard public streetlight fixtures for which lights are operated and maintained by the city's utilities department, and for which installation costs were borne by a government agency other than the city's utilities department (does not include underground civil infrastructure costs or pole rental fees):

Fixture size and type	Monthly charge per fixture
Light Type 13, 19, 25 — 100 watt HPS Light*	\$4.00
Light Type 11 — 100 watt HPS Light	4.00
Light Type 14, 15, 32 — 150 watt HPS Light	5.50
Light Type 2, 3 — 175 watt MV Light	5.25
Light Type 4 — 250 watt HPS Light*	8.00
Light Type 12, 16, 31 — 250 watt HPS Light	8.00
Light Type 5, 6, 7 — 400 watt HPS Light*	11.50
Light Type 10, 17, 22, 23, 24 — 400 watt HPS Light	11.50
Light Type 26 — 100 watt Granville Style Light	8.50
Light Type 27 — 100 watt HPS Domus Light	5.50
Light Type 28 — 100 watt MV Coach Style Light*	9.00
Light Type 29 — 100 watt HPS Traditional Style Light	9.75
Light Type 30 — 100 watt MH Traditional Style Light	10.00
Light Type 33, 34 — 200 watt HPS Renaissance Style Light	9.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Light Type 38 — LED Roadway Light 1 Gray (100 watt equivalent)	0.80
Light Type 39 — LED Roadway Light 2 Gray (150 watt equivalent)	1.07
Light Type 40 — LED Roadway Light 3 Gray (250 watt equivalent)	3.01
Light Type 41 — LED Roadway Light 4 Gray (400 watt equivalent)	5.71
Light Type 42 — LED Roadway Light 2 Black (150 watt equivalent)	1.07
Light Type 43 — LED Roadway Light 3 Black (250 watt equivalent)	3.01
Light Type 44 — LED Roadway Light 4 Black (400 watt equivalent)	5.71
*Not available for installation	

Monthly kWh per fixture based on wattage:	
100 watt	41
150 watt	62
175 watt	72
250 watt	103
400 watt	164
1,000 watt	410
LED Type 38	14
LED Type 39	19
LED Type 40	55
LED Type 41	105

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

LED Type 42	19
LED Type 43	55
LED Type 44	105

3. Should a department of the City of Gainesville or Alachua County request to install pole(s) or lighting fixture(s) not contained in subsections m., n., or p. below, and not part of the approved Gainesville Regional Utilities Electric Material Standards the fixture(s), light source(s), and lighting component(s) shall be connected behind a meter. The purchase, installation, operation, maintenance and ownership of the pole(s), fixture(s), light source(s), and lighting component(s) will be the responsibility of the requesting department. The energy charge for the lighting shall be at the General Service Non-demand rate.
4. Fuel adjustment. (See section 27-31).
- n. Rental outdoor light service rates (§ 27-30.1.):
 1. Monthly rental charges for approved rental outdoor light fixtures (does not include underground civil infrastructure costs or pole rental charges):

Group Fixture Description	Monthly charge per fixture
Group 1 Flood Lights	
Light Type 7 — 400 watt MV Flood Light*	\$13.25
Light Type 10 — 400 watt HPS Flood Light	12.75
Light Type 12 — 250 watt HPS Flood Light	11.50
Light Type 22 — 400 watt MH Flood Light	13.75
Group 1 Luminaires	
Light Type 3 - 175 watt MV Area Light*	9.75
Light Type 11 — 100 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey	9.50
Light Type 13 — 100 watt HPS Area Light*	9.75

Light Type 14—150 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey	10.00
Group 2 Luminaires	
Light Type 4 — 250 watt HPS Non Cutoff Street Light*	15.00
Light Type 5 — 400 watt MV Non Cutoff Street Light*	13.25
Light Type 6 — 400 watt HPS Non Cutoff Street Light*	15.50
Light Type 16 — 250 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey	12.00
Light Type 23 — 400 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Grey*	15.25
Group 3 Luminaires	
Light Type 24 — 400 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Black	20.75
Light Type 31 — 250 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Black	19.25
Light Type 32 — 150 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Black	18.50
Group 1 Decorative Lights	
Light Type 2 — 175 watt MV Post Top Street Light Conical Style*	15.25
Light Type 15 — 150 watt HPS Bronze Decorative Shoe Box Style	13.00
Light Type 19 — 100 watt HPS Post Top Street Light Conical Style	15.25
Light Type 25 — 100 watt HPS Cutoff Lantern Style Street Light*	16.75
Group 2 Decorative Lights	
Light Type 17 — 400 watt MH Round Cutoff Roadway Light Black	25.00
Light Type 26 — 100 watt HPS Granville Style Light*	34.50
Light Type 28 — 100 watt MV Pedestrian Street Light Coach Style*	33.75

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Light Type 29 — 100 watt HPS Cutoff Street Light Traditional Style	36.75
Group 3 Decorative Lights	
Light Type 27 — 100 watt HPS Domus Style Light	39.25
Light Type 30 — 100 watt MH Cutoff Street Light Traditional Style	38.00
Light Type 33 — 200 watt HPS Renaissance II Style Light	41.50
Light Type 34 — 200 watt HPS Renaissance IV Style Light	42.50
LED Roadway Luminaries	
Light Type 38 — LED Roadway Light 1 Gray (100 watt equivalent)	19.35
Light Type 39 — LED Roadway Light 2 Gray (150 watt equivalent)	20.83
Light Type 40 — LED Roadway Light 3 Gray (250 watt equivalent)	24.01
Light Type 41 — LED Roadway Light 4 Gray (400 watt equivalent)	28.72
Light Type 42 — LED Roadway Light 2 Black (150 watt equivalent)	20.83
Light Type 43 — LED Roadway Light 3 Black (250 watt equivalent)	24.01
Light Type 44 — LED Roadway Light 4 Black (400 watt equivalent)	28.72
*Not available for installation	

Monthly kWh per fixture based on wattage:	
100 watt	41
150 watt	62
175 watt	72

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

250 watt	103
400 watt	164
1,000 watt	410
LED Type 38	14
LED Type 39	19
LED Type 40	55
LED Type 41	105
LED Type 42	19
LED Type 43	55
LED Type 44	105

2. Monthly rental charges for GRU standard rental outdoor light fixtures for which lights are operated and maintained by the city's utilities department, and for which installation costs were borne by a customer other than the city's utilities department (does not include underground civil infrastructure costs or pole rental fees):

Fixture size and type	Monthly charge per fixture
Light Type 13, 19, 25 — 100 watt HPS Light*	4.00
Light Type 11 — 100 watt HPS Light	4.00
Light Type 14, 15, 32 — 150 watt HPS Light	5.50
Light Type 2, 3 — 175 watt MV Light	4.25
Light Type 4 — 250 watt HPS Light*	8.00
Light Type 12, 16, 31 — 250 watt HPS Light	8.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Light Type 5, 6, 7 — 400 watt HPS Light*	11.50
Light Type 10, 17, 22, 23, 24 — 400 watt HPS Light	11.50
Light Type 26 — 100 watt Granville Style Light	8.50
Light Type 27 — 100 watt HPS Domus Light	5.50
Light Type 28 — 100 watt MV Coach Style Light*	9.00
Light Type 29 — 100 watt HPS Traditional Style Light	9.75
Light Type 30 — 100 watt MH Traditional Style Light	10.00
Light Type 33, 34 — 200 watt HPS Renaissance Style Light	9.00
Light Type 38 — LED Roadway Light 1 Gray (100 watt equivalent)	0.80
Light Type 39 — LED Roadway Light 2 Gray (150 watt equivalent)	1.07
Light Type 40 — LED Roadway Light 3 Gray (250 watt equivalent)	3.01
Light Type 41 - LED Roadway Light 4 Gray (400 watt equivalent)	5.71
Light Type 42 — LED Roadway Light 2 Black (150 watt equivalent)	1.07
Light Type 43 — LED Roadway Light 3 Black (250 watt equivalent)	3.01
Light Type 44 — LED Roadway Light 4 Black (400 watt equivalent)	5.71
*Not available for installation	

Monthly kWh per fixture based on wattage:	
100 watt	41
150 watt	62

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

175 watt	72
250 watt	103
400 watt	164
1,000 watt	410
LED Type 38	14
LED Type 39	19
LED Type 40	55
LED Type 41	105
LED Type 42	19
LED Type 43	55
LED Type 44	105

3. Should a utility customer request to install fixtures and/or poles not contained in this subsection n., or subsection q. below, and not part of the approved Gainesville Regional Utilities Electric Material Standards, the fixture(s), light source(s), and lighting component(s) shall be connected behind a meter. The purchase, installation, operation, maintenance and ownership of the pole(s), fixture(s), light source(s), and lighting component(s) will be the responsibility of the utility customer. The energy charge for the lighting shall be at the General Service Non-demand rate.
4. Rental Contract Termination Fee. The rates for rental outdoor lighting service includes a recovery of installation charges over a sixty (60) month period. If a customer elects to terminate the five (5) year contract prior to the end of the sixty month period, an early removal fee of ten dollars (\$10.00) per month per light and six dollars (\$6.00) per month per pole shall be billed to the account for each month remaining on the contract, which is less than sixty (60) months beyond the first month's billing of the contract.
5. Fuel and purchased power adjustment. (See section 27-31).
- o. Reserved.
- p. Public streetlight pole service rates
 1. Rental charges for poles installed by the city's utilities department for the purpose of supporting public streetlights when required, including poles installed by the city's

utilities department to replace poles for which installation costs were borne initially by a customer or by an agency other than the city's utilities department (§§ 27-29.1, 27-30.1):

Pole Group Pole Description	Monthly charge per pole
Pole Group 1	
P3 — 12 Foot Aluminum Pole for use with Light Type 2 and 19	7.50
P4 — 18 Foot Aluminum Pole for use with Light Type 2 and 19	8.50
P6 — 19 foot Fiberglass Pole Black for use with Light Type 25	3.75
P8 — 30 foot wood pole	4.50
P12 — 35 foot wood pole	4.75
Pole Group 2	
P9 — 30 foot concrete pole	6.50
P13 — 35 foot concrete pole	6.75
P15 — 40 foot wood pole	5.00
P18 — 45 foot wood pole	13.25
Pole Group 3	
P1 — 10 foot (direct buried) pole decorative concrete	12.75
P2 — 10 foot fiberglass pole black for use with Light Type 28	17.25
P10 — 30 foot fiberglass breakaway pole grey	15.00
P14 — 35 foot (direct buried) decorative octagonal concrete pole black	16.00
P16 — 40 foot concrete pole	8.75
P17 — 40 foot direct buried decorative octagonal concrete pole black	24.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

P19 — 45 foot concrete pole	9.25
Pole Group 4	
P5 — 18 foot Domus pole black for use with Light Type 27	19.00
P11 — 30 foot aluminum pole black for use with Light Type 17	26.75
Pole Group 5	
P7 — 26 foot steel Renaissance pole black	30.75

- q. Rental charges for poles which are for the purpose of supporting rental light fixtures when required, (does not include underground civil infrastructure costs):

Pole Group Pole Description	Monthly charge per pole
Pole Group 1	
P3—12 Foot Aluminum Pole for use with Light Type 2 and 19	8.75
P4—18 Foot Aluminum Pole for use with Light Type 2 and 19	9.50
P6—19 foot Fiberglass Pole Black for use with Light Type 25	3.75
P8—30 foot wood pole	4.50
P12—35 foot wood pole	4.75
Pole Group 2	
P9 — 30 foot concrete pole	6.50
P13 — 35 foot concrete pole	6.75
P15 — 40 foot wood pole	5.00
P18 — 45 foot wood pole	15.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Pole Group 3	
P1—10 foot (direct buried) pole decorative concrete	15.00
P2—10 foot fiberglass pole black for use with Light Type 28	20.00
P10 — 30 foot fiberglass breakaway pole grey	15.00
P14 — 35 foot (direct buried) decorative octagonal concrete pole black	18.25
P16 — 40 foot concrete pole	8.75
P17 — 40 foot direct buried decorative octagonal concrete pole black	27.75
P19 — 45 foot concrete pole	9.25
Pole Group 4	
P5 — 18 foot Domus pole black for use with Light Type 27	22.00
P11 — 30 foot aluminum pole black for use with Light Type 17	30.75
Pole Group 5	
P7 — 26 foot steel Renaissance pole black	35.50

(2) *Solid waste and recyclables:*

a. Residential service (§ 27-76):

1. Redemption of impounded containers:

- (i) First impoundment, per container~~5.25~~ 5.50
- (ii) Subsequent impoundments within 12 months from the same place, per container
.....~~10.50~~ 11.00

2. Rates:

- (i) Uniform curbside service for each single family residence or dwelling unit or living unit, or multifamily unit (any building containing two but not more than four permanent living units) or mobile home unit, per month:

18 gallon cart~~16.00~~ 16.75

35 gallon cart~~20.75~~ 21.75

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

64 gallon cart~~25.75~~ 27.00

96 gallon cart~~32.00~~ 33.50

(ii) Other charges:

Account set up charge~~10.50~~ 11.00

Pre-paid approved bag, each, not to exceed~~2.25~~ 2.50

Exchange of cart for larger size~~12.50~~ 12.60

Exchange of cart for smaller size0.00

Fixed cost of service per month (for computing vacation credit)~~5.25~~ 5.50

(iii) Backyard service, per month:

18 gallon cart~~27.00~~ 28.25

35 gallon cart~~31.25~~ 32.75

64 gallon cart~~38.00~~ 40.00

96 gallon cart~~46.75~~ 49.00

b. Commercial services franchise and construction and demolition debris franchise (§ 27-80):

1. Application for container provision only~~105.00~~ 110.25

2. Application for construction and demolition debris collection franchise~~262.50~~
275.75

3. Application for solid waste collection franchise~~262.50~~ 275.75

i. Commercial franchisee providing commercial service: Ten percent of gross revenues from the providing of containers and the collection of garbage and trash from commercial properties under the franchise.

ii. Commercial franchisee providing construction and demolition debris collection service shall pay as compensation to the city an annual fee calculated based on all vehicles owned, leased, or otherwise used in construction and demolition debris collection service as follows:

a. ~~\$1,575.00~~ 1,653.75 for each vehicle having ten or more wheels;

b. ~~\$1,050.00~~ 1,102.50 for each vehicle having more than five and fewer than ten wheels; and

c. ~~\$525.00~~ 551.25 for each vehicle having four or five wheels.

4. Application for solid waste collection franchise, together with a construction and demolition collection franchise~~262.50~~ 275.75

5. Monthly franchise fee for solid waste collection: 10% of gross revenues from the sale or lease of containers, from garbage and trash collection services, from all disposal billed, from late fees, from bad debt recoveries and from other fees collected from customers, with no deductions except for bad debts actually written off.

Note: For the first month (if less than a full month), this fee shall be prorated based on the gross revenues collected for the number of days the franchise is in place that month.

6. Annual franchise fee for construction and demolition debris collection:

- i. For each vehicle having ten or more wheels~~1,575.00~~ 1,653.75
- ii. For each vehicle having more than five and fewer than ten wheels~~1,050.00~~ 1,102.50
- iii. For each vehicle having four or five wheels~~525.00~~ 551.25

Note: For the first year (if less than a full year), this fee shall be prorated based on the number of days the franchise is in place that year.

- c. Commercial recycling/recovered materials collector registration application or renewal of registration (§ 27-86~~52.50~~ 55.25

(3) *Water:*

- a. Inspection service fee (§ 27-124700.00

Plus an amount to be assessed on the amount of developer installed mainline distribution piping, per liner foot2.25

- b. Water main tapping charges (§ 27-125):

Tap Size (inches)		Charge
1½	\$ 920.00
2	920.00
4	4,630.00
6	>4,990.00
8	5,780.00
12	9,210.00

- c. Backflow testing fee (§ 27-135100.00

- d. Reserved.

- e. Meter installation charges (§ 27-126.1):

- 1. Meter assembly and service lateral:

Water Meter	Water Meter
-------------	-------------

Size (inches)	Installation Charge
5/8 × 3/4	\$ 510.00
3/4	580.00
1	700.00
1½	2,150.00
2	2,400.00
3	7,770.00
4	8,760.00
6	16,050.00
8	19,060.00

Note: For meters larger than eight (8) inches, the water meter installation charge shall be established on a site specific basis by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee.

2. Meter only:

Water Meter	Water Meter
Size (Inches)	Installation Charge
5/8 × 3/4	\$ 250.00
3/4	330.00
1	450.00
1½	1,590.00
2	1,810.00

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

3. Wastewater customers on private wells:

Water Meter	Water Meter
Size (Inches)	Installation Charge
5/8 × 3/4	\$ 250.00
3/4	330.00
1	450.00
1½	1,590.00
2	1,810.00

Note: For meters larger than two (2) inches, the meter installation charge shall be established on a site specific basis by the city.

f. Reserved.

g. Base rates for service (§ 27-128):

1. Nonresidential water service:

Customer service charge, per month, per bill rendered9.20

Rate per 1,000 gallons3.85

2. Nonresidential service for irrigation purposes, any meter size:

Customer service charge, per month, per bill rendered9.20

Rate per 1,000 gallons4.55

3. Residential water service:

Customer service charge, per month, per bill rendered9.20

Rate per 1,000 gallons, first 6,000 gallons2.35

Rate per 1,000 gallons, over 6,000 gallons and less than 21,000 gallons3.75

Rate per 1,000 gallons, equal to or greater than 21,000 gallons6.00

4. Residential service through 5/8" meter for irrigation purposes:

Customer service charge, per month, per bill rendered9.20

Rate per 1,000 gallons, first 14,000 gallons3.75

Rate per 1,000 gallons, over 14,000 gallons6.00

5. Multiple-family residential service:

Customer service charge, per month, per bill rendered9.20

Rate per 1,000 gallons3.05

6. University of Florida water service

(i) On-campus facilities:

Customer service charge, per month, per bill rendered9.20

Rate per 1,000 gallons2.22

(ii) Off-campus facilities:

Customer service charge, per month, per bill rendered9.20

Rate per 1,000 gallons2.64

7. Fire Hydrant Service:

Supported only, per hydrant, per month11.60

h. Reserved.

i. Water transmission and distribution connection charges (§ 27-129):

1. For two (2) inches and smaller water meters. For applicants requiring water meters up to and including two-inch meter size, the water transmission and distribution connection charge shall be based on the size(s) of the water meter(s) installed according to the following:

Water Meter	Transmission and Distribution
Size (inches)	Connection Charge
5/8	\$ 420.00
¾	1,220.00
1	1,340.00
1½	3,100.00
2	5,760.00

2. For water meters serving multi-family units and water meters larger than two (2) inches, the water transmission and distribution connection charge shall be based on the estimated demand for service in accordance with the following:

- (i) \$1.511 per gallon per day (GPD) of annual average daily flow (ADF).
- (ii) There will be a minimum charge of \$5,760.00 for meters larger than two (2) inches.

j. Water treatment plant connection charges (§ 27-129):

1. For two (2) inches and smaller water meters. For applicants requiring water meters up to and including two-inch meter size, the water treatment plant connection charge shall be based on the size(s) of the water meter(s) installed according to the following:

Water Meter	Water Treatment Plant
Size (inches)	Connection Charge
5/8	\$ 660.00
3/4	1,920.00
1	2,180.00
1½	5,000.00
2	9,960.00

2. For water meters serving multi-family units and water meters larger than two (2) inches, the water treatment plant connection charge shall be based on the estimated demand for service in accordance with the following:

- (i) \$2.253 per gallon per day (GPD) of annual average daily flow (ADF).
- (ii) There will be a minimum charge of \$9,960.00 for meters larger than two inches.

k. Water connection charge installment (§27-103)

Installment payments for water transmission and distribution connection charges and water treatment plant connection charges made in accordance with §27-103 are as follows:

Water Meter	Monthly
Size (inches)	Charge
5/8	\$13.68

¾	39.78
1	44.59
1½	102.61
2	199.13
> 2 (per gpd)	0.050/gpd,
	or \$199.13, whichever is greater

I. Standby fire sprinkler line charges (§ 27-131):

1. Standby fire lines:

- (i) Each applicant for standby fire line service shall pay to the city, in advance of the construction of the line, the following charges per connection:

Line Size	Charge Per
(inches)	Connection
6	\$7,300.00
8	10,200.00

Note: For lines larger than eight (8) inches, the charge shall be established on a site specific basis by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee.

- (ii) If a line of adequate size to the applicant's property does not exist, extension contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) according to section 27-130 is also applicable when the city is required to install a water line in order to provide a standby fire connection.

m. Temporary service (§ 27-133):

1. Generally:

Meter installation and removal, nonrefundable92.00

Deposit1,130.00

2. Meter installed on existing fire hydrant:

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

- (i) Meter installation and removal, nonrefundable92.00
 - (ii) Deposit1,130.00
 - 3. Monthly base charge for use of temporary fire hydrant meter water service67.00
 - 4. Temporary fire hydrant water meters may be issued for a period of up to six (6) months. If customer requires use of said meter beyond six months, a request must be made to the utility for an extension of use. If no extension is requested and the meter has not been returned, the utility will remove the meter, or keep the deposit if the meter cannot be retrieved.
 - 5. Customer may be charged the actual cost to replace or repair meters tampered with or damaged while issued to customer.
- (4) *Sewerage:*
- a. Reserved.
 - b. Reserved.
 - c. Rates for normal strength wastewater (§ 27-169):
 - 1. Residential dwellings, (including single-family dwellings, mobile homes, apartments, and residential customers on metered private wells):
 - (i) Charges for winter months (January and February billing periods):
 - Customer service charge per bill rendered, per month8.40
 - Rate per 1,000 gallons of wastewater (wastewater equals city water usage, per 1,000 gallons6.05
 - (ii) Charges for March through December billing periods (§ 27-169.1):
 - Customer service charge per bill rendered, per month8.40
 - Rate per 1,000 gallons of wastewater, (wastewater equals the lesser of (i) city water usage or (ii) the individual customer's winter maximum), per 1,000 gallons6.05
 - 2. Current residential customers who are not connected to the wastewater system, but are subject to rates and charges under section 27-169(c), per month38.65
 - 3. Single-family dwellings on private wells discharging unmetered water to the wastewater system, per month38.65
 - 4. Multiple-family dwellings (including apartments, and mobile homes in approved mobile home parks) on private wells discharging unmetered water to the wastewater system (does not include the customer service charge):
 - Customer service charge per bill rendered8.40
 - Per month, per unit30.25
 - 5. Nonresidential rate and residential customers with 5/8 inch meters for irrigation purposes (wastewater is calculated as 95% of city water usage in such month):
 - Customer service charge per bill rendered8.40
 - No maximum, per 1,000 gallons6.05
 - 6. Where monthly wastewater service charges for nonresidential customers are based on the amount of the monthly water billed from the city, separate meters may be

allowed at the expense of the customer and an allowance may be made for measured water not entering the city's wastewater system.

7. Where wastewater meters are required by the city or requested by the customer, the customer shall pay to the city a monthly charge based on the cost to the city of all operation and maintenance costs of the meter or meter installation plus depreciation. The initial cost of any and all such installations shall be paid for by the user. Customers with a wastewater meter will be billed for 100 percent of the wastewater flow measured by the wastewater meter.
 8. The general manager for utilities or his/her designee is authorized to adjust residential monthly wastewater service charges to reflect reduced wastewater discharges from approved individual graywater disposal systems, as determined by procedures and engineering calculations contained in policies approved by the city commission.
- d. Rates for excess strength wastewater (§ 27-169):
1. A customer discharging excess strength wastewater into the city's wastewater system shall be assessed a laboratory charge based on the cost of collecting and analyzing samples used to determine the strength and characteristics of the waste.
 2. Where automatic sampling equipment is required by the city or requested by the customer and such equipment is owned and/or maintained by the city, a monthly sampling charge shall be assessed based on the cost to the city of operation and maintenance of the equipment plus depreciation.
 3. A customer discharging excess strength waste into the wastewater system shall be assessed normal strength wastewater charges in addition to excess strength charges calculated according to the following formula:

$$[Y / X - 1] \times [Z] \times [0.5 \times A]$$

Y	=	Measured concentration of the wastewater constituent.
X	=	Concentration of constituent in normal strength wastewater.
Z	=	Thousands of gallons of excess strength wastewater discharge into the city's wastewater system.
A	=	Normal strength wastewater rate per thousand in [subsection] c.5(i) above.

Note: Excess strength charges shall be applicable to any parameter for which a normal strength limit has been established by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee.

- e. Rates for septic tank and portable toilet waste (§ 27-169): Septic tank and portable toilet waste shall not be introduced into the city's wastewater system, except when specifically authorized and only at the time, place and manner prescribed by the city. This wastewater shall be metered and excess strength wastewater charges and industrial user charges shall be assessed.

- f. Rates for industrial charges (§ 27-169): Any industrial user discharging into the City's wastewater system shall be assessed a permit application fee for each five-year permit of510.00
- g. Right to assess other fees (§ 27-173): The city reserves the right to assess consumers other fees as necessary to carry out the requirements contained within article IV of Chapter 27. These fees relate solely to the matters covered by such article, and are separate from all other fees chargeable by the city.
- h. Rates for reclaimed water service (§ 27-169):
 Customer service charge per bill rendered, per month8.40
 Rate per 1,000 gallons of reclaimed water metered0.70
- i. Wastewater flow-based connection charges (§ 27-171):
1. For two (2) inches and smaller water meters. For applicants of wastewater service requiring water meters up to and including two-inch meter size, the wastewater flow-based connection charge shall be based on the size(s) of the water meter(s) installed according to the following:

WASTEWATER FLOW-BASED CONNECTION CHARGES

Water Meter Size (inches)	Collection System (Gravity, Lift Station, Force Main)	Treatment Plant	Total
5/8	\$ 670.00	\$ 3,110.00	\$ 3,780.00
¾	1,950.00	9,060.00	11,010.00
1	2,180.00	10,510.00	12,690.00
1½	5,000.00	23,680.00	28,680.00
2	9,590.00	49,060.00	58,650.00

2. For water meters serving multi-family units and water meters larger than two (2) inches, the wastewater flow-based connection charge shall be based on the estimated demand for service in accordance with the following:

(i)	Wastewater flow-based connection charges:		
	<i>Collection System</i>	<i>Treatment Plant</i>	<i>Total</i>

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

	\$2.508/GPD-ADF	\$11.214/GPD-ADF	\$13.722/GPD-ADF
(ii)	Minimum charges for meters larger than two inches:		
	<i>Collection System</i>	<i>Treatment Plant</i>	<i>Total</i>
	\$9,950.00	\$49,060.00	\$58,650.00

3. Wastewater Flow-Based Connection Charge Installment (§ 27-103)

Installment payments for wastewater flow-based connection charges made in accordance with § 27-103 are as follows:

Water Meter	Monthly
Size (inches)	Charge
5/8	\$ 47.88
3/4	139.47
1	160.75
1½	363.31
2	742.95
> 2 (per gpd)	0.1700

4. For customers discharging excess strength wastewater. In addition to wastewater flow-based connection charges assessed pursuant to subsection (i) of (ii) above, customers discharging excess strength wastewater into the city's wastewater system shall be assessed excess strength flow-based treatment plant connection charges calculated according to the following formula:

$$[Y/X-1] \times A$$

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

Y	=	Measured concentration of wastewater constituent.
X	=	Concentration of constituent in normal strength wastewater.
A	=	Wastewater flow-based treatment plant connection charge assessed pursuant to subsection 1. or 2. above.

- j. Inspection service fee (§ 27-1721,250.00
Plus, an amount to be assessed on the amount of developer installed mainline collection piping, per linear foot5.55
- k. Off-site force main extension (CIAC) (§ 27-174): To be determined by the city.
- l. Requirement for additional CIAC (§ 27-175): To be determined by the city.
- m. Permit for construction of private sewerage disposal system (§ 27-183.1)5.00
- (5) *Natural gas:*
- a. Appliance service and repair charges (§27-279):
1. Trip charge25.00
 2. Labor charge, per one-half hour18.50
Minimum charge of one-half hour; total charge in one-half hour increments
 3. In addition, for other than normal working hours (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., M-F, excluding city holidays), per one-half hour18.50
- b. Residential service rates (§27-272):
1. Base rate. The rates to be charged and collected for natural gas sales furnished by the City to consumers for residential service are hereby fixed as follows:
 - (i) Customer charge, per month, per bill rendered9.75
 - (ii) Non-fuel charge, per therm0.5020
 - (iii) Manufactured gas plant cost recovery factor, per therm0.0556
 2. Minimum Monthly Bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the customer charge.
 3. Purchased gas adjustment. (see Section 27-273
- c. General service rates, small commercial (§27-272):
1. Base rate. The rates to be charged and collected for natural gas sales furnished by the City to consumers for small commercial businesses are hereby fixed as follows:
 - (i) Customer charge, per month, per bill rendered20.00
 - (ii) Non-fuel charge, per therm0.4900
 - (iii) Manufactured gas plant cost recovery factor, per therm0.0556

2. Minimum Monthly Bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the customer charge.
3. Purchased gas adjustment. (see Section 27-273)
- d. General service rates (§27-272):
 1. Base rate. The rates to be charged and collected for natural gas sales furnished by the City to consumers for general service are hereby fixed as follows:
 - (i) Customer charge, per month, per bill rendered40.00
 - (ii) Non-fuel charge, per therm0.3650
 - (iii) Manufactured gas plant cost recovery factor, per therm0.0556
 2. Minimum Monthly Bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the customer charge.
 3. Purchased gas adjustment. (see Section 27-273)
- e. Large Volume service rates (§27-272; §27-277):
 1. Base rate. The rates to be charged and collected for natural gas sales on an interruptible basis furnished by the City to consumers for large volume service are hereby fixed as follows:
 - (i) Customer charge, per month, per bill rendered375.00
 - (ii) Non-fuel charge, per therm0.2050
 - (iii) Manufactured gas plant cost recovery factor, per therm0.0556
 2. Minimum monthly bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the customer charge plus the non-fuel charge times 30,000 therms.
 3. Purchased gas adjustment (see Section 27-273).
 4. Availability. This service is available to consumers in the natural gas service area, both within and outside the corporate limits of the city who meet the requirements as defined in §27-272 and §27-277 and only to the extent that supplies are available for this service under the city's contracts with its suppliers.
- f. Liquid propane gas service rates (§ 27-288.1):
 1. Base rate. The rates to be charged and collected for liquid propane gas sales furnished by the city to consumers are hereby fixed as follows:
 - (i) Customer charge, per month, per bill rendered9.75
 - (ii) Non-fuel charge, per gallon. A contract rate which shall equal the sum of the current non-fuel energy charge for residential natural gas customers and one of the following fixed charges as determined by the general manager for utilities or his/her designee:
 - A. Three-year recovery, per gallon0.15
 - B. Five-year recovery, per gallon0.10
 - C. Seven-year recovery, per gallon0.075
 - D. More than seven-year recovery, per gallon0.03
 2. Minimum Monthly Bill. The minimum monthly bill shall be equal to the customer charge.
 3. Liquid propane purchased gas adjustment (see Section 27-288.2).

- g. Requested interruption non-compliance penalty, per therm (§ 27-277(c)(2)).

If a consumer fails to discontinue the use of natural gas when requested by the city, the consumer will be billed for all gas taken during the interruption period at a price equal to the city's cost of natural gas for the date(s) of the requested interruption, including commodity transportation, risk management fees and such other costs as shall be deemed appropriate times four hundred percent (400%).

- (6) *Stormwater management* (§ 27-241):

Monthly fee for each equivalent residential unit (ERU) period commencing October 1, 2013
~~.....8.56~~ 9.00

- (7) *In general:*

- a. Residential standard deposits per service provided (§ 27-7):

1. Electric service145.00
2. Water service35.00
3. Wastewater service40.00
4. Gas service50.00

- b. Service charges:

1. Specially arranged visit for meter reader to read meter (§ 27-8c)20.00
2. Installation or turn-on of service (§ 27-15a):
 - (i) Electric service:
 - (A) Non-demand meter30.00
 - (B) Demand meter60.00
 - (ii) Water service30.00
 - (iii) Gas service:
 - (A) Residential, with electric or water turn-on40.00
 - (B) Residential, gas turn-on only50.00
 - (C) All other retail classifications100.00
 - (iv) In addition to all other applicable charges, the following rates may also apply:
 - (A) If guaranteed service is requested for the same or any fully-scheduled workday*40.00
 - (B) If service is provided anytime on holidays or weekends50.00

*Workdays shall be weekdays, except for city holidays.
3. Field visit trip charges (§ 27-15b)25.00
4. Field visit for special purpose (§ 27-15c, d):
 - (i) Delinquent disconnection40.00
 - (A) In addition, if commercial gas service is disconnected or the water meter is removed due to safety requirements, unauthorized connection, or customer request30.00
 - (B) If electric service is disconnected at the point of service (pole, service drop or transformer)100.00

- (C) In addition, if service reconnection is requested after normal working hours, but prior to 11:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time, on a workday*40.00
- (D) In addition, if reconnection service is provided anytime on holidays or weekends50.00

*Workdays shall be weekdays, except for city holidays. Normal working hours are 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.

(ii) Special visit at customer request to:

- (A) Reread meter where reading is found to be correct20.00
- (B) Temporarily disconnect meter20.00
- (C) Provide conservation service where customer failed to appear as scheduled20.00
- (D) Turn on gas where the customer failed to appear as scheduled20.00
- (E) Light pilot light for natural gas appliance50.00

(iii) Meter testing charges:

- (A) Electric, if meter not more than two percent fast (§ 27-26.120.00
- (B) Gas, deposit (§ 27-280.210.00
- (C) Water, testing by meter size:

Meter Size (inches)	Testing Charge
5/8×¾	\$10.00
¾	12.00
1	12.00
1½	18.00
2	25.00
3	30.00*
4	35.00*
6	40.00*
8	45.00*

* The city does not have the capacity to test the meters with its own personnel. Any zone and per diem charges that are made by an outside company to make these tests will be chargeable to the customer.

5. Temporary electric service, installation and removal (§ 27-25):50.00
6. Water meter removal due to nonpayment of deferred fees and charges (§ 27-121125.00
7. Returned payment, each (§ 27-14.3a)20.00
 *(or five percent of the face amount of the transaction, whichever is greater)
8. Late fee for combined statement (§ 27-14(e))1.00
 *(or 1½ percent of the unpaid balance amount, whichever is greater)
9. Electronic remote read meter installation charges (§ 27-8(c)):
 (i) Electric service:
 (A) Non demand meter77.00
 (B) Demand meter177.00
 (ii) Water service100.00
 (iii) Gas service59.00
10. Unauthorized service investigation (§§ 27-26.2(c); 27-126.3(c); 27-280.165.00

VEHICLES FOR HIRE:

Franchise fee/per year (section 28-5)~~319.25~~ ~~335.25~~ 0.00

Vehicle Medallion/permit (biennially - per vehicle)~~29.00~~ ~~30.50~~ 0.00

Individual driver permit fee (new, transfers and renewals)~~23.00~~ ~~24.25~~ 0.00

Individual driver permit fee (duplicates for lost, stolen or destroyed)~~12.50~~ ~~13.25~~ 0.00

Late penalty, annual report, payment not timely filed, incomplete or inaccurate (section 28-5), per month~~29.00~~ ~~30.50~~ 0.00

Background checks for towing and taxi permit applicants..... 24.00 in addition to the permit application fee

Editor's note—

The following ordinances have affected the schedule of fees, rates and charges set out in this appendix.

(Code 1960, §§ 2-41, 7-18, 8-2, 9-8, 9-17, 9-33, 10-15, 12-14, 13-37, 14A-2(a), 16-3, 17-1, 19-9, 20A-33, 23-18, 23 42, 24-8, 24-17, 24-58, 24-59, 27-14, 28-3.1—28-3.4, 28-6, 28-7, 28-7.01, 28-7.1, 28-7.2, 28-13.1, 28-16, 28-26, 28-27, 28-34.1, 28-36.2, 28-37, 28-37.1—28-37.6, 28-40, 28-40.1, 28-42, 28-57, 28-64, 28-64.1—28-64.7, 28-64.9, 28B-4, 31-11; Ord. No. 3045, § 1, 8-20-84; Ord. No. 3058, § 1(13B-5), 9-24-84; Ord. No. 3069, §§ 1, 2, 10-15-84; Ord. No. 3087, §§ 1—6, 12-17-84; Ord. No. 3114, § 1, 3-18-85; Ord. No. 3138, § 1, 6-10-85; Ord. No. 3170, § 2, 10-14-85; Ord. No. 3174, §§ 1, 2, 10-21-85; Ord. No. 3191, § 21, 1-22-86; Ord. No. 3254, § 2, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3259, § 1, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3260, § 1, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3262, § 1, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3263, § 1, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3264, § 1, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3265, § 1, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3266, § 1, 9-22-86; Ord. No. 3289, § 1, 10-13-86; Ord. No. 3290, § 1, 10-13-86; Ord. No. 3302, § 1, 11-24-86; Ord. No. 3303, §§ 1, 2, 11-24-86; Ord. No. 3309, § 1, 12-15-86; Ord. No. 3325, § 1, 2-23-87; Ord. No. 3328, §§ 1, 2, 3-9-87; Ord. No.

CODE: Words ~~Stricken~~ are deleted; words underlined are added.

3344, § 1, 6-15-87; Ord. No. 3374, §§ 1, 2, 9-28-87; Ord. No. 3404, §§ 1—3, 2-8-88; 4-11-88; Ord. No. 3449, § 1, 8-8-88; Ord. No. 3460, § 2, 9-19-88; Ord. No. 3467, §§ 1—5, 9-26-88; Ord. No. 3468, § 1, 9-26-88; Ord. No. 3469, § 1, 9-26-88; Ord. No. 3470, §§ 1, 2, 9-26-88; Ord. No. 3484, §§ 2, 4, 11-14-88; Ord. No. 3493, §§ 1—4, 11-21-88; Ord. No. 3503, § 1, 12-12-88; Ord. No. 3516, §§ 1, 2, 2-13-89; Ord. No. 3521, § 1, 3-6-89; Ord. No. 3531, §§ 1, 2, 4-24-89; Ord. No. 3564, §§ 1—4, 9-18-89; Ord. No. 3565, §§ 1—4, 9-18-89; Ord. No. 3567, §§ 1, 4, 5, 9-25-89; Ord. No. 3574, § 1, 10-9-89; Ord. No. 3577, §§ 1, 2, 10-9-89; Ord. No. 3581, § 1, 12-4-89; Ord. No. 3597, §§ 1, 2, 2-19-90; Ord. No. 3663, § 1, 9-24-90; Ord. No. 3665, §§ 8—15, 9-24-90; Ord. No. 3666, § 1, 9-24-90; Ord. No. 3667, § 1, 9-24-90; Ord. No. 3668, § 1, 9-24-90; Ord. No. 3689, § 1, 1-7-91; Ord. No. 3738, §§ 3—7, 9-30-91; Ord. No. 3739, §§ 9—12, 9-30-91; Ord. No. 3740, §§ 8—11, 9-30-91; Ord. No. 3754, §§ 70—79, 1-27-92; Ord. No. 3756, § 1, 2-17-92; Ord. No. 3758, § 1, 3-16-92; Ord. No. 3760, § 1, 4-16-92; Ord. No. 3786, § 2, 9-21-92; Ord. No. 3787, §§ 1, 2, 9-21-92; Ord. No. 3788, §§ 1—3, 9-21-92; Ord. No. 3789, §§ 1, 2, 9-21-92; Ord. No. 3791, § 1, 9-21-92; Ord. No. 3833, § 1, 2-15-93; Ord. No. 3837, § 1, 3-1-93; Ord. No. 3842, §§ 1—8, 3-15-93; Ord. No. 3851, § 2, 4-5-93; Ord. No. 3854, § 4, 5-19-93; Ord. No. 3856, § 1, 5-3-93; Ord. No. 3897, § 1, 9-20-93; Ord. No. 3898, § 1, 9-20-93; Ord. No. 3899, § 1, 9-20-93; Ord. No. 3900, §§ 1—3, 9-20-93; Ord. No. 3902, §§ 1, 2, 9-20-93; Ord. No. 3915, § 1, 10-25-93; Ord. No. 3990, § 1, 7-25-94; Ord. No. 4018, § 3, 9-19-94; Ord. No. 4019, § 1, 9-26-94; Ord. No. 4032, § 4, 9-26-94; Ord. No. 4033, § 3, 9-26-94; Ord. No. 4071, § 3, 4-10-95; Ord. No. 4076, § 1, 5-22-95; Ord. No. 950300, § 1, 7-24-95; Ord. No. 950302, § 3, 7-24-95; Ord. No. 950504, §§ 1, 2, 8-31-95; Ord. No. 950601, § 2, 9-25-95; Ord. No. 950731, § 2, 10-9-95; Ord. No. 950732, § 1, 10-9-95; Ord. No. 950733, § 5, 10-9-95; Ord. No. 950734, § 1, 10-9-95; Ord. No. 950735, § 2, 10-9-95; Ord. No. 950802, § 1, 10-23-95; Ord. No. 951183, § 1, 2-26-96; Ord. No. 951263, § 3, 8-12-96; Ord. No. 951541, § 4, 6-10-96; Ord. No. 960267, § 1, 9-23-96; Ord. No. 960268, § 1, 9-23-96; Ord. No. 960269, § 1, 9-23-96; Ord. No. 960270, § 2, 9-23-96; Ord. No. 960332, § 1, 9-23-96; Ord. No. 960970, § 1, 4-28-97; Ord. No. 960498, §§ 2, 3, 5-27-97; Ord. No. 960798, §§ 2, 3, 6-23-97; Ord. No. 970088, § 1, 8-11-97; Ord. No. 960494, §§ 1—6, 8-25-97; Ord. No. 970203, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No. 970306, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No. 970307, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No. 970319, § 1, 9-22-97; Ord. No. 970250, § 1, 10-13-97; Ord. No. 970434, § 2, 10-13-97; Ord. No. 970593, § 2, 12-8-97; Ord. No. 970793, § 1, 2-23-98; Ord. No. 970469, § 3, 4-13-98; Ord. No. 970631, § 3, 6-8-98; Ord. No. 980566, § 1, 11-9-98; Ord. No. 980557, §§ 4—8, 11-23-98; Ord. No. 980949, § 3, 3-8-99; Ord. No. 981158, § 1, 7-12-99; Ord. No. 990079, § 3, 7-12-99; Ord. No. 990288, § 1, 9-13-99; Ord. No. 990390, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 990391, § 1, 9-27-99; Ord. No. 990299, § 2, 10-25-99; Ord. No. 990193, § 2, 11-8-99; Ord. No. 990452, § 2, 11-8-99; Ord. No. 990861, § 2, 2-14-00; Ord. No. 00057, § 1, 8-14-00; Ord. No. 980745, § 4, 9-25-00; Ord. No. 000252, § 1, 9-25-00; Ord. No. 000199, § 1, 10-9-00; Ord. No. 000682, § 1, 12-11-00; Ord. No. 000867, §§ 2—5, 2-26-01; Ord. No. 000903, § 2, 5-14-01; Ord. No. 000566, §§ 1, 2, 8-27-01; Ord. No. 001661, § 1, 9-10-01; Ord. No. 001662, § 1, 9-10-01; Ord. No. 001699, § 1, 9-10-01; Ord. No. 001871, § 3, 10-8-01; Ord. No. 001839, § 1, 4-22-02; Ord. No. 002566, § 1, 5-13-02; Ord. No. 020244, § 1, 8-26-02; Ord. No. 020245, § 1, 9-9-02; Ord. No. 020266, § 1, 9-9-02; Ord. No. 020267, § 1, 9-9-02; Ord. No. 020268, § 2, 9-9-02; Ord. No. 020638, § 1, 4-14-03; Ord. No. 020903, § 2, 4-14-03; Ord. No. 020233, § 2, 4-28-03; Ord. No. 030165, § 1, 8-25-03; Ord. No. 030278, §§ 22—24, 9-8-03; Ord. No. 030279, 9-8-03; Ord. No. 030280, § 1, 9-8-03; Ord. No. 030281, § 1, 9-8-03; Ord. No. 030468, §§ 1—5, 10-27-03; Ord. No. 030480, § 1, 11-24-03; Ord. No. 030604, § 1, 12-15-03; Ord. No. 030694, § 2, 6-28-04; Ord. No. 040128, § 1, 7-26-04; Ord. No. 040378, § 1, 9-27-04; Ord. No. 040392, § 1, 9-27-04; Ord. No. 021198, § 3, 5-23-05; Ord. No. 041148, § 1, 5-9-05; Ord. No. 041241, § 1, 6-27-05; Ord. No. 050064, § 2, 7-11-05; Ord. No. 050120, §§ 10, 11, 9-26-05; Ord. No. 050326, § 1, 9-26-05; Ord. No. 050327, § 1, 9-26-05; Ord. No. 050374, § 1, 9-26-05; Ord. No. 050669, §§ 1, 2, 12-12-05; Ord. No. 050801, § 1, 1-23-06; Ord. No. 050823, § 1, 3-27-06; Ord. No. 060002, § 2, 8-28-06; Ord. No. 060103, § 5, 9-11-06; Ord. No. 060198, §§ 6, 7, 9-25-06; Ord. No. 060347, § 1, 9-25-06; Ord. No. 060383, § 1, 9-25-06; Ord. No. 060434, § 1, 9-25-06; Ord. No. 060435, § 1, 9-25-06; Ord. No. 060436, § 1, 9-25-06; Ord. No. 060345, § 1, 11-13-06; Ord. No. 060378, §§ 3, 2, 1-8-07; Ord. No. 060433, § 2, 10-9-06; Ord. No. 060457, § 4, 10-23-06; Ord. No. 060613, §§ 4, 3, 3-26-07; Ord. No. 050530, § 2, 1-23-06; Ord. No. 050749, § 2, 7-23-07; Ord. No. 051224, § 2, 7-23-07; Ord. No. 070022, § 14, 6-25-07; Ord. No. 070107, § 3, 6-25-07; Ord. No. 070372, § 1, 9-24-07; Ord. No. 070375, § 1, 9-24-07; Ord. No. 070376, § 1, 9-24-07; Ord. No.

070377, § 1, 9-24-07; Ord. No. 070378, § 1, 9-24-07; Ord. No. 070429, §§ 2—7, 10-22-07; Ord. No. 070726, § 1, 9-18-08; Ord. No. 070744, § 2, 6-9-08; Ord. No. 070916, § 1, 4-14-08; Ord. No. 080200, § 1, 9-18-08; Ord. No. 080201, § 1, 9-18-08; Ord. No. 080202, § 1, 9-18-08; 080203, § 1, 9-18-08; Ord. No. 080263, § 1, 9-18-08; Ord. No. 080102, § 4, 11-6-08; Ord. No. 080566, § 2, 2-5-09; Ord. No. 070268, § 2, 2-19-09; Ord. No. 080284, § 3, 3-19-09; Ord. No. 080860, § 1, 5-21-09; Ord. No. 080988, § 1, 5-21-09; Ord. No. 090036, § 1, 7-2-09; Ord. No. 080984, § 2, 7-16-09; Ord. No. 090284, § 1, 9-17-09; Ord. No. 090285, § 1, 9-17-09; Ord. No. 090286, § 1, 9-17-09; Ord. No. 090287, § 1, 9-17-09; Ord. No. 090294, § 2, 10-15-09; Ord. No. 090325, § 1(Exh. A), 9-17-09; Ord. No. 090326, § 3, 10-1-09; Ord. No. 090350, § 1, 10-1-09; Ord. No. 090007, § 3, 4-1-10; Ord. No. 090410, § 1, 11-19-09; Ord. No. 080579, § 1, 6-17-10; Ord. No. 100140, § 1, 8-19-10; Ord. No. 100104, § 1, 9-16-10; Ord. No. 100162, § 1, 9-16-10; Ord. No. 100163, § 1, 9-16-10; Ord. No. 100164, § 1, 9-16-10; Ord. No. 100165, § 1, 9-16-10; Ord. No. 100223, § 1, 9-16-10; Ord. No. 100309, § 1, 10-7-10; Ord. No. 100588, § 2, 2-17-11; Ord. No. 100840, § 7, 5-19-11; Ord. No. 110017, § 3, 8-18-11; Ord. No. 110213, § 1, 9-15-11; Ord. No. 110236, § 1, 9-15-11; Ord. No. 110159, § 1, 9-19-11; Ord. No. 110160, § 1, 9-19-11; Ord. No. 110161, § 1, 9-19-11; Ord. No. 110162, § 1, 9-19-11; Ord. No. 110377, § 1, 11-17-11; Ord. No. 110076, § 11, 8-2-12; Ord. No. 120167, § 1, 9-20-12; Ord. No. 120168, § 1, 9-20-12; Ord. No. 120169, § 1, 9-20-12; Ord. No. 110942, § 5, 9-6-12; Ord. No. 120438, § 1, 12-20-12; Ord. No. 110373, § 6, 3-21-13; Ord. No. 120597, § 2, 3-21-13; Ord. No. 120152, § 2, 6-20-13; Ord. No. 120139, § 3, 9-5-13; Ord. No. 130196, § 1(Exh. A), 9-19-13; Ord. No. 130222, § 1, 9-19-13; Ord. No. 120642, § 4, 3-6-14; Ord. No. 130695, § 5, 3-6-14; Ord. No. 120206, § 3, 6-19-14; Ord. No. 120516, § 3, 8-21-14; Ord. No. 130912, § 1(Exh. A), 8-21-14; Ord. No. 140171, § 5(Exh. A), 9-18-14) Ord. No. 130895, § 2, 12-4-14; Ord. No. 130460, § 2, 10-16-14; Ord. No. 140171, 9-18-2014; Ord. No. 140297, 1-15-15

FOOTNOTE(S):

--- (1) ---

Editor's note— The schedule in this appendix contains all of the fees, rates and charges, except for taxes, which are prescribed in this Code of Ordinances.

Cross reference— Administration, Ch. 2; taxation, Ch. 25; occupational license tax schedule, § 25-51.
[\(Back\)](#)